
PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL  

 
Kermit Williams, District 7    Patrice Waterman, District 1 

President      Megan Shramski, District 2 

Randy Carter, District 4    Mary Pietila, District 3 

President Pro Tem     Gloria Miller, District 5 

       Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6  

 

It is this Council’s mission “To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 

for its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play.” 

47450 Woodward Pontiac, MI 48342 Phone: (248) 758-3200   Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A. 

          Interim City Clerk 

 

STUDY SESSION 

     267th Session of the 10th Council 

December 14, 2021 at 6:00 P.M. 

Meeting Location:  City Council Chambers 47450 Woodward Pontiac, MI 48342         

 

Councilwoman Waterman will receive the Canvassing and Phonebank Grassroots Award during the meeting. 

 

Call to Order 

 

Roll Call 

 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers   

 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 

 

Approval of the Minutes 

1. December 7, 2021 

 

Public Comment 

 

Public Hearing  

   1b.   Community Development Block Grant 2022 Program Year Application 

 

Special Presentations (Presentations are limited to 10 minutes.) 
2. Special Tribute from State Representative Brenda Carter to Pontiac City Council Members 

 
3. The American Rescue Plan (ARP) Town Hall Series 

 
4. Mayor’s 2021 Year End Report with Status of Departmental Strategic Agendas 

 

 Discussion 
5. Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center (PYREC) 

 

Agenda Items 

Ordinances 

6. Emergency Ordinance for Extension of Supplemental Pension Payment for Police and Fire Retirees 

 

7. An Ordinance to Amend the City of Pontiac Reestablished General Employees’ Retirement System 

 

Resolutions  

City Council 

8. Resolution of No Confidence in Mayor Deirdre Waterman 



2 

 

City Clerk 
9. Resolution to Set a Special Election for May 3, 2021 to elect Charter Commissioners   

 

10. Resolution to Authorize the City Clerk to post notice of a proposed budget amendment for Fiscal Year 2021-22 

in the Oakland Press to amend the Elections (191) to cover expenses for Special Election and Charter 

Commission 

 

11. Resolution to Change the City Council Meeting on December 30, 2021 at 12:00 p.m. to December 28, 2021 at 

12:00 p.m. 

 

Community and Economic Development 

     11b. Resolution to Approve the Submission of the Community Development Block Grant Application for Program  

             Year 2022 Allocating $798,883 for Sidewalks 

 

Department of Public Works (DPW) 

12. Resolution to Approve the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) Annual Permit Performance 

Resolution 

 

Finance 

13. Resolution to Approve a Month-to-Month Agreement with Wade Trim for the City of Pontiac Building 

Services 

 

14. Resolution to Authorize Mayor to sign the Oakland County Sheriff- 2021-2022 Law Enforcement Agreement 

with the City of Pontiac 

 

Planning 

15. Resolution to Approve Conveyance of Northwest 20 Feet of Lots 8 and 9 Elkins Addition City of Pontiac (Tax 

Parcel 64-14-31-403-006) Via Quit Claim Deed to Amorphous Solid, LLC (Epiphany Studios). 

 

Law 

16. Resolution to Approve Medical Marihuana Commission Amended Rules (The City Council rules requires 

that if a resolution fails it cannot be brought back for 30 days.  The resolution to adopt the Commission 

rules was not approved on November 16, 2021.) 
 

17. Legal Update Memorandum 

 

Communications from the City Clerk 
18. Medical Marihuana Commission Update (This item relates to item 16.) 

 

19. Clerk’s Response to City Attorney Memorandum about Potential Conflicts of Interest in Marihuana Application 

Review Process (This item relates to item 17.) 

 

Adjournment 



#1 
MINUTES 



December 7, 2021 Formal Draft 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

2661h Session of the Tenth Council 

A Formal Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order at the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 4 7450 Woodward Ave Pontiac, Ml 48342 on Tuesday, December 7, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. by 
Council President Kermit Williams. 

Invocation - Councilwoman Doris Taylor-Burks 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Mayor Waterman was present. 
A quorum was announced. 

Excuse Councilmember 
21-381 Motion to excuse Councilperson Megan 
for personal reasons. Moved by Councilp~rsoliW~terman 

' .·.: ---.->-..:>. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterlllan, Willi~trt~,a(J.d 
No: None, · ' · 
Motion Carried·· . 7 

Amendments to and App}9yal oftli~!\.genda t' 
21-382 .. Motion to ad~,-,'1n §t~!fc,,fJhe CityB:~~lution to the agenda as item# 4a. Moved by 
Councilper§on Jaylqr-.Burks anij ~~q9d by <;quncilpersql} Waterman. 

< ,,""" ·. ·.•,,,,,:,.:, .. ·, -, ,.·:,c:- ,,_-_ :•_~ ",· .•. ;.-;.:-:, · ·c:·:c .. ,_- --- --., •,, . ',,,,, 

Ayes: T~yior~.Burks,W,tennan, Williiiins and Carter No: .... ·,.,......... ···.··., .. 

\,Motion Carried\ 
",\ 

21-383 l\f~titm to add-on ~"Resolution for "Junior Grand Marshal" Lauren McNair to the 
agenda as item #4h,Mored by Cqupfilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: T~9l~f713Ji~/Waterman, Williams and Carter 
No: ... 

Motion Carri~d 

Councilwoman Megan Shramski arrived at 6:06 p.m. 

21-384 Motion to add-on special presentation aud Retirement Ordinance to the agenda. 
Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, and Shramski 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

1 



December 7, 2021 Formal Draft 

21-3 85 Motion to approve the agenda as amended. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and 
second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Shramski and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Approval of Minutes 
21-386 Motion to approve meeting minutes for December 7, 2021. Moved by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Shramski, Taylor-Bur~aildWatennan 
No: None · · · · 

Motion Carried 

Add-On Special Presentation 
Retirement Ordinance 
Presentation Presenter: Deborah Munson, Pontiac 

Councilwoman Gloria Miller arrived at <i;08 p.m. 

Public Comment /\ . > . 

Employees Retirement System (GERS) 

Twelve (12) individuals addressed the bodyQ1,1ririgpµl>Hc ~ornmi,nt 

No Recognition of Elecb1d.()fli~~,1s 

No Agenda Address 

Resolutions 

~:~~ounciL . J\.JJ:o~J1,,sol!m:,~ega:diJit11~29~f~tate of the City Fanvell Address. Moved by 
Councilp#~son Waterman •Md second ~y.Councilpers9nTaylor-Burks. 

Whereas, it ~its ~ome to Cou~;m,~atteniiJriJh.~t the Mayor is hosting a 2021 State of the City Farwell 
Address on D~tJtber 16, 2021 at Ml Concourse Event Center; and, 
Whereas, section4.1oi(b) of the Cijit'.t;ter states that the Mayor possess all powers inherent in being the 
chief of operating offiter of the exeputive branch including presenting the proposed annual budget and a 
state of the city address; atiq > ··' 
Whereas, the charter is clear,the.Mayor is entitled to have "a," which is singular, state of the city address 
and not multiple; and, · · 
Whereas, the Mayor provided her State of the City Address on June 28, 2021; and, 
Whereas, the Mayor may certainly have a farewell address ad at a location of her choosing, but not using 
taxpayer dollars. 
Now, Therefore Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council does not and will not approve any 
expenditures related to the Mayor's State of the City Farwell Address or for any other speech or 
production. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: Miller 
Resolution Passed 

2 



December 7, 2021 Fonnal Draft 

21-388 Add-on Resolution for "Junior Grad Marshal" Lauren McNair. Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Whereas, it is the sense of this legislative body to honor an outstanding, young adult of remarkable 
character, who inspirational and who deserves as a role-model to others; and, 
Whereas, Lauren McNair has the unique distinction and privilege of representing the City of Pontiac as 
the 2021 Junior Grand Marshal and is the winner of the Fran Anderson Making a Difference Scholarship; 
and, 
Whereas, Lauren McNair is a Pontiac resident and attends Waterford Mott High School; and, 
Whereas, Lauren McNah' is an exceptional student who has a passi011f9r volunteering in the community; 
and, · · 

Whereas, Lauren McNair as a volunteer in the community oftep3/:isisfs youth and teens with alcohol and 
drug abuse prevention, serve as a tutor, creates murals and tY:\18k~s aj;tplasses, and, 
Whereas, the driving force behind Lauren McNair's commun,ityinvolyep:i.ent is "to make the community 
a better place," and, >, · ) . 
Whereas, Lauren McNair is also a remarkable scholai-"f PO has been on the i)()JJ.()f Roll all four years, is a 
member of both the National Honor Society (NHS)a:t:1.d the National Art Honqr~()ciety (NAHS) and has 
been on the Varsity Cheer team for four years; and,/ • .. .·. ,. :, 
Whereas, Lauren McNair is a rising star who plans triatte.n.d college11ext fall and majpf .in Health 
Sciences; and, ••. •... .· ··• • .<. . · ·· 
Whereas, Lauren McNair is an active V()lupteetwith the Oakl1J.11~County Sheriff PAL Cheer and Dance 
program and the Clarence E. Phillips Asceli~ l@19dation T.R.U.'J:'~l:i Youth Coalition; and, 
Whereas, Lauren McNair's contributions ofJ(}adersp.ip, ~elflessness)apd commitment to our community 

are invaluable. ... .. .\. > • •i\ 
Now, Therefore, Be It Re~oly~,Jhat the Pontia9 pty C?M,fil;apd the m~!llbers of this great community, 
honor and salute the P7{~?~lll acc01'lJ>lishments a11clachii:,v~ments.9fJ~nior Grand marshal, Lauren 
Mc Nair for a job we! l don~ and for truly, representirigth~ City of Pontiac. Congratulations. 

Ayes: Mn1lr:·~J'.!ramski,/I'llylor-Bu:~s,·\vaterman, Williams and Carter 
No:.None · · · · · 

R.esolilfi1:m Passed 

21-389 Resolution t~ ~1.1thori~tlle City Clerk to post notice of a proposed budget 
amendmenifqr fiscal year 2021/~022 in tll'e pakland Press to transfer $55,000.00 out of General 
Fund BalanceG!,.account 101 ... 10k804-000:Legal Services and t..ansfer $55,000.00 into the Capitol 
Improvement Fm1dJ;L account tH~-265-976-001 Building Additions and Improvements. Moved by 
Councilperson Wate@lll'l and sec°'ridpy Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

~,, /,,,::,,._,/:-':/ 
Now, Therefore, Be It Res<Jlyed,that the Pontiac City Council schedule a public hearing for a proposed 
budget amendment for fiscalyeaf202l/2022 in the Oakland Press to transfer $55,000.00 out of General 
Fund Balance GL account I 01-101-804-000 Legal Services and transfer $55,000.00 into the Capitol 
Improvement Fund GL account 445-265-976-001 Building Additions and Improvements on December 
21, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at Pontiac City Hall 47450 Woodward Pontiac, MI 48342. 

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

Community and Economic Development 

3 



December 7, 2021 Formal Draft 

21-390 Resolution to schedule a Public Hearing to reprogram Senior Housekeeping 
Services to Safety and Repair Services for Seniors and Disabled Persons for Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Years 2019 and 2020. Moved by Councilperson Taylor
Burks and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council schedule a public hearing to reprogram 
Senior Housekeeping Services to Safety and Repair Services for Seniors and Disabled Persons for 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2019 and 2020 on December 21, 2021 at 
6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at Pontiac City Hall 47450 Woodward Pontiac, Ml 48342. 

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Watennan, Williams,Qarter and Miller 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

Law 'Y> > ..... . 
21-391 Resolution to authorize entry of State Local.~oref~ment I;•f~11tate Agreement concerning 
allocation of Settlement Proceeds in the NationaJQpioids Litigation. M9ved by Councilperson 
Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-B1.1.r~s. · 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac filed a lawsuit in the Unit;.d~tates J?isftict Court toiiddr~s,s the public 
nuisance that is the Opioid Epidemic, wlii9h named, among9~j}.t:r~9rripanies, the follo\Vin.g four 
Defendants ("Settling Defendants"): i? : ... / / 7 · 

I. Janssen Phannaceuticals, Inc.(~ pres<:[iption opioid11]J!anufacturer); 
2. AmerisourceBergen Corp. (Aptt:scrip!i9nppioids wfo:>lt::i~ler distributor); 
3. Cardinal Health,Inc. (a prescripHqil opioids\Vj}.()lesalerdis!fi?utor); and 
4. McKesson C()r,p()r,ti()I\ (A prescripti()n opioi~11\Vji.qlesaler d.istt;ibutor) and, 

Whereas, the lawsuit ~~fµbsequt:Iltl~ transferre.dt.o ~helJnitedS.t11t~ll District Comt in the Northern 
District of Ohio and cen,tri\lized as pal'$;Qfln re Nati<>~11l.Prescription.Opiate Litigation, MDL 2804; Case 
No. 1: 17-md-2804, whichiS..presided C'':'rr by the HQ~()~able Dan Aaron Polster, United State Federal 
District Court Judge; and, ; . • ; J . . . < 
Whereas, t~e§~~lingl)efendan~ha.ye.negotiate(ipropqse.q national settlement agreements ("Proposed 
Settlemen~!ln with the Sti.1t<::Attome;y11 General,· an411tlaintiff Executive Committee-designated 
negotiatj~~ committee thatt<::presents ijpproximately ';l1000 local governments that have brought lawsuits 
similar to Qity of Pontiac's la.WllJJ.it; atid, .. ·· 
Whereas, thePr9posed Settlerhi::nti; contain ~tdefault" allocation method where settlement funds that are 
allocated to a patticular state to resolve the claims asserted by state and local governments within the state 
are allocated as follows: · :• ·\ 

• 15% ofs¢ttli~~nt proce¢1ispaid under the Proposed Settlement are allocable to the State; 
• 15% of the settl~lllent s are allocable to local governments; and 
• 70% of the settletti~ntprq s are allocable to an opioid abatement fund; and 

Whereas, the Proposed Settlements enable the state and local governments within a State to negotiate 
alternative allocation methods to the "default" allocation method referenced above; and 
Whereas, the City of Pontiac desires to enter into an alternative allocation method which allocates 
settlement funds solely to: 

I. Participating Local Governments who have elected to participate in the Proposed Settlements; 
and 

2. The State of Michigan. 
Now, Therefore, The City of Pontiac authorizes the execution of a Michigan State-Subdivision 
Agreement for Allocation of Distributor Settlement Agreement and Jassen Settlement Agreement 
substantially similar to the proposed agreement attached to this resolution. The City of Pontiac also 
authorizes execution of a similar state-subdivision agreement to the extent that it provides a substantially 

4 



December 7, 2021 Formal Draft 

similar allocation of settlement or bankruptcy proceeds obtained from opioids litigation with any other 
entity. 

Mayor's Office 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Shramski 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

21-392 Resolution to adopt the Final Version of the Merger Agreement between the City of 
Pontiac, Police and Fire VEBA and Super VEBA. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Whereas, the City entered into a settlement agreement with a class ofretirees related to City funding of 
retiree health benefits in City of Pontiac Retired Employees Assoqiationet. al. v. Schimmel et al, Docket 
#64-2, Case No. 2:12-cv-12830-AC-PJK dated March 30, 2018(Uijifod States District Court Eastern 
District of Michigan), which was given final approval by tht:<:Qurt:}ip:November 19, 2018 (the 

"Settlement Agreement"); .· . · ·.··•.·.······· · ····· ······ ···••···•• 
Whereas, the City of Pontiac, Michigan (the "City") established the City'of.Pontiac VEBA Trust (the 
"Super VEBA") on March 23, 2020; ,•···••··•··•·•·••.··•··· .·.. · .... 
Whereas, the City established the City of Pontiac .p pijce and Fire Retiree Prefuil9!,!d Group Health and 
Insurance Plan (the "P&F VEBA") on August 22, 19.?~;.. . . . j 
Whereas, the Internal Revenue Service has issued detefn'li11ation l.ett~r~ indicating t~tboth the Super 
VEBA and P&F VEBA are exempt fro111Jederal incometaxl¾ticniulider Code §SOI (c)(?); 
Whereas, Section 7 of the Settlement Agrieml;lpt requires thatJlleiP&F VEBA be merged into the Super 
VEBA with the Super VEBA being the sufvivihgt){ltity; 
Whereas, the City Council has been providtjd theproposed mergeragr1:1ement to be entered into by and 
between the Super VEBA, the P&F VEBA, a.qdthe City,effective as ~tJanuary 31, 2022 (the "Merger 

Agreement"). ..·.··•··.3·••· ... ?.<. . •.. ··.•·••··>• .. ·····•••···•· )••····· ··· •T • 
Whereas, the City Coul!cill}asrevieiyi;ld and discu~~ed,~~~ergef:A.greement; and 
Whereas, to effectuate th~terms of th¢ Settlement~gr1;1¢nient, the following resolutions are hereby 

adopted: .. <.: •.. • ··· .. · •·· 
Resolved, the Merger Agreetll~n.t is 9-ppmv1;1~ in its propqsed substantive form; 
Further Resqlvi;ld, t~!t J)r. Deihli~ )\';~teriiian,1v1~yor ofthl;l City of Pontiac, is directed and authorized to 
(I) exec.4tethe Mergerf'\..gr,~ement()1l.'behalf oftl1§9ity; and (2) execute and direct legal counsel to make 
any sublll.l~sion to the Iritemalreveime Service on beh11..lf of the City related to approval of the Merger 
Agreement by the Internal rev¢n4e Servi~ pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement ("IRS 
Submissiori'1);'and ...•. · .. · • . .. > 

Fmther Resolve<l;·that the filing fees associate(i with any IRS Submission are authorized to be paid to the 
Internal revenue Service by the City.\ 

,,. _,,,_,_•·:·'·., 

Ayes:W~terman,w1Iliams, Carter, Miller, Shramski and Taylor-Burks 
No: None/ , .· · ..... 

Resolution J>as~ed 

Mayoral Monthly Reports 
Received Personal Monthly Staff Report 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 
Mayor Waterman, Legislative Counsel Sharpe, Councilwoman Shramski, Interim Clerk Doyle, 
Councilwoman Miller, Council President Pro tern Carter and Council President Williams made closing 
comments. 

Adjournment 

5 



December 7, 2021 Formal Draft 

Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 7:51 p.m. 

Garland Doyle 
Interim City Clerk 

6 



#3 
SPECIAL 

PRESENTATION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable City Council President Williams and City Council 

Alexandra Bomgesser, Grants 

THROUGH: Executive Office of Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

DATE: December 14th, 2021 

RE: The American Rescue Plan Town Hall Series 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In March, President Biden signed the American Rescue Plan Act into law. This act is meant to provide 
aid to both state and local governments and to promote local communities' recovery and revitalization 
following the impacts of COVID-19. The City of Pontiac was allocated $37.7 million from the American 
Rescue Plan Act. 

In an effort to raise public awareness about the allotment of American Rescue Plan funds awarded to the 
city and to receive feedback from the public about how best to allocate the funds, Mayor Deirdre 
Waterman hosted a series of town halls. It was the goal, that through these interactive meetings, we could 
work towards establishing a shared vision of how best to apply these funds. The content from expert 
presenters, the dialogue with residents, and interactive breakout activities provided the City with feedback 
to better build a strategic plan for the investment of these funds. This memorandum is meant to provide a 
summarized synopsis of the information gathered from the American Rescue Plan Town Halls. 

MEETING FORMAT 

The meetings were held at various locations throughout the city for each of the seven districts. Each 
meeting was hosted by Mayor Deirdre Waterman and was moderated in cohort with Alexandra 
Bomgesser. The format of the meeting included presentations from experts, question and answer sessions 
with residents, a breakout activity for feedback and collaborative ideation, and clear next steps. 

For district 1 & district 2, the meeting was held on October 18th at 6:00 PM at the Robert Bowens Senior 
Center. The meeting had 64 in-person attendees and 78 vitiual attendees. The October l 8th panelists and 
their respective presentation topics included: Mayor Deirdre Waterman - Strategic Planning and 
Leadership, Darin CatTington, Finance Director -ARP Funding Parameters & Permissible Uses, Vern 
Gustafsson, Planning Director - Proposed ARP Funded City Projects, Matt Gibb, Attorney - ARP Related 
Business Development, Job Creation, & Leveraging Funds, and Donovan Smith- Previous Projects & 
Demolition Maps. 



The district 3, district 4, and district 6 meeting was held on October 21 st at 6:00 PM at the Ruth Peterson 
Senior Center. The meeting had 36 in-person attendees and 204 virtual attendees. The October 21 st 

panelists and their respective presentation topics included: Mayor Deirdre Waterman - Strategic Planning 
and Leadership, Darin Carrington, Finance Director -ARP Funding Parameters & Permissible Uses, 
Donovan Smith - Proposed ARP Funded City Projects & Previous Projects, Matt Gibb, Attorney - ARP 
Related Business Development, Job Creation, & Leveraging Funds, and Peter Gleek, IT Professional -
Smart City & Broadband. 

The district S & district 7 meeting was held on November l S!h at 6:00 PM at the Salvation Army Holland 
Community Center. The meeting had 13 in-person attendees and 260 virtual attendees. The November 
lS!h panelists and their respective presentation topics included: Vern Gustafsson, Planning- Proposed 
ARP Funded City Projects, Linnette Phillips, Economic Development - Business Development Funding 
Opportunities, Matt Gibb, Attorney - Leveraging Funds & Pontiac Smart City, Abdul Siddiqui, Engineer 
- Storm Sewer Infrastructure, and Darin Carrington, Finance Director- ARP Introduction and Eligibility 
Requirements. 

The meeting for Pontiac non-profits was held on Novembel' 6th, 2021 at Oakland University. The Meeting 
had 19 in-person attendees. The November 6th panelists and their respective presentation topics included: 
Mayor Deirdre Waterman - Strategic Planning and Leadership, Linnette Phillips, Economic Development 

Business Development & Citizen Relief, and Alexandra Borngesser, Grants - Permissible Uses. The 
attendees also reviewed presentations from Lighthouse, Habitat for Humanity, Oakland-Pontiac Initiative, 
The Pontiac Skate Park Project, and Centro Multicultural La Familia. 

KEY FINDINGS & TAKEAWAYS 

From the feedback collected during the breakout sessions at each town hall, the following can be 
concluded: 

Issue Space Occurrence: 

• ARTS AND CULTURE: 4 
• BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT &JOB CREATION: 18 
• INFRUSTRUCTURE: 28 
• NEIGHBORHOOD REVITILIZATION: 30 
• PUBLIC SAFETY: 7 
• SMART CITY INITIATIVES: 10 

• YOUTH: 6 

The following items were recurring themes from each of the town hall discussions and feedback breakout 
sessions: 

• OWNER OCCUPIED HOME IMPROVEMENT AND RENT TO OWN PROGRAMS 
• CITY-WIDE BROADBAND INTERNET ACCESS 
• POLICE AND FIRE INVESTMENTS 
• CLINTON RIVER TRAIL IMPROVEMENTS 
• YOUTH RECREATION AND ENRICHMENT PROGRAMS 
• SIDEWALK AND ROAD REPAIRS 
• SMALL BUSINESS SUPPORT 

2 



KEY PROJECTS FOR IMMEDIATE FUNDING 

During this process, the Executive Office of Mayor Deirdre Waterman, used public feedback derived 
from the American Rescue Plan Town Halls to begin the strategic planning for key projects for immediate 
funding. Those projects include: 

Lighthouse - Emergency Service for Pontiac Residents 
This project would allow for funding for Lighthouse, a Pontiac non-profit, to provide access to food, 
permanent shelter, eviction prevention and wrap around services such as mental health support, 
employment coaching, credit repair, etc. The program would also include economic mobility services to 
all Pontiac residents and would co-locate emergency services and economic services within one location 
in Pontiac. This is a Person-centered services project that would promote privacy, autonomy, and stability 
for Pontiac residents. 

Habitat for Humanity-Affordable Housing Gap Fund 
The only solution to the problematic economic barrier to affordable homeownership is to secure grant 
funding to cover the gaps that are present. Cunent gaps for single or multi-family homes in Pontiac are 
approaching $100,000 per unit (less in other communities). This gap can be partially mitigated through 
collaborative fundraising and innovative cost saving construction methods, but even the most creative 
endeavors do not close the gap. Additional gap funding from the American Rescue Plan could help close 
the affordable housing gap through this strategic plan in partnership with Habitat fol' Humanity. 

Oahland University/ Pontiac Initiative Non-Profit Incubator 
The OU-Pontiac hlitiative wishes to establish a OU-Pontiac Initiative Non-Profits Incubator that extends 
its expertise, workspace, and hive-mind to Pontiac non-profits. The OU-Pontiac Initiative will work with 
existing partners to strengthen the existing non-profit community in Pontiac and to ensure that they are 
sustained into the future. The incubator will fill a much needed gap in mentorship, brick and mortar 
collaborative workspaces and guidance with standing up the operational infrastructure of a functioning 
non-profit. 

Centro Multicultural La Familia - Infrastructure and Programming 
Since the inception of the possibility to renovate a school building, the goal of Centro Multicultural La 
Familia has always been to contribute to the growth of the Pontiac community. It is their hope to build 
renovate a school building using American Rescue Plan funds to provide the following services on top of 
their regular services: Comm UNITY Library Healing Garden, Suppo11 to micro-enterprises (bakery, 
salon, etc.), Workforce development (teaching sewing,jewelry making, growing herbs/plants, catering, 
etc.), Co-work or studio space for locals, Capacity-building workshops and skill shares, Communal 
gathering space indoors & outdoors, Community resource fairs, and Film screenings, poetry & writing 
workshops, family events. 

3 



Small Business Program - Small Business Development 
This proposal is a small Business Program to provide gap funding for business owners in the form of 
grants and loans. Currently, we have approximately 1,200 small business owners. Business owners can 
apply for funding through applications and/or pitch competitions. Through review by the EDC, new or 
start-ups could receive funding. Funding options include, but are not limited to: Small Business Grants -
one time up to $5,000, Small Business Micro Loans up to $15,000 with review and approval by the 
EDC and Small Business Revolving Loans - up to $50,000 with review and approval by the EDC. 

The program is designed to promote entrepreneurship, small business growth and enhance the COP's 
economy. We will provide technical support and related resources. Additionally, small business owners 
applying for funding would participate in a "small business boot camp" comprised of workshops with 
subject matter experts (SME), workshops providing technical assistance to create documentation, 
business plans, generating reports with metrics, networking and connecting with providers or required, 
useful and necessary resources. 

City-Wide Broadband Internet-Pontiac Smart City Initiative 
A proposal to create broad based infrastructure in the COP with cameras to monitor safety and tracking of 
infrastructure such as pot holes, leaks in water lines, traffic congestion, etc. The COP could reach out to 
tech and infrastructure partners to collaborate and provide additional resources and funding. 

Workers and Families Program - Citizen Relief & Job Creation 
This program provide assistance to unemployed workers and job training in partnership and cohort with 
local organizations and businesses. 

Investing in Housing and Neighborhoods - Citizen Relief 
Services to support individuals facing homelessness, affordable housing and housing vouchers, residential 
counseling and navigation assistance. This is a program to increase home ownership to Pontiac's 61,606 
residents where 60% are renters and move frequently. With our reduced unemployment rate and with an 
employer such as United Wholesale Mortgage (UWM) who employs over 9,000 employees. The COP 
would work in tandem with them to assist with programs to promote and prepare residents to purchase 
homes. The COP also will deploy a program to sell properties owned by the COP and also offer first 
right of refusal for the purchase of properties that are adjacent or congment to current owner's property. 
This would also include aid to Pontiac residents for home improvements such as roof repairs, replacement 
for hot water tanks, windows and exterior work related to leaks, and exposure of elements. 

Department of Public Works- Infrastructure Repairs 
This funding oppo11unity would include Storm Drain Maintenance, Giddings Rd Culvert Replacement & 
Road Reconstruction, and Opdyke Sidewalk & Associated Drainage Updates. Additional enhancements 
could also include video inspection and cleaning of all storm water structures and sewers in addition to 
purchasing St~eet Sweepers for Local Roads, and purchasing Vactor Trucks for Catch Basin Cleaning In
House. 

4 



AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN 
TOWN HALL RECAP 



DISTRICT 1 & DISTRICT 2 
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN TOWN HALL 

LOCATION: ROBERT BOWENS SENIOR CENTER 

DATE: OCTOBER 18, 2021 AT 6:00 PM 

IN-PERSON ATTENDEES: 64 

VJRTUALATTENDEES: 78 

PANELISTS: 
0 Mayor Deirdre Waterman - Strategic Planning and Leadership 

0 Darin Carrington, Finance Director -ARP Funding Parameters & Permissible Uses 

0 Vern Gustafsson, Planning Director - Proposed ARP Funded City Projects 

0 Matt Gibb, Attorney -ARP Related Business Development, Job Creation, & Leveraging Funds 

0 Donovan Smith- Previous Projects & Demolition Maps 



DISTRICT 3, DISTRICT 4, & DISTRICT 6 
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN TOWN HALL 

LOCATION: RUTH PETERSON SENIOR CENTER 

DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2021 AT 6:00 PM 

IN-PERSON ATTENDEES: 36 

VIRTUAL ATTENDEES: 204 

PANELISTS: 
0 Mayor Deirdre Waterman - Strategic Planning and Leadership 

0 Darin Carrington, Finance Director-ARP Funding Parameters & Permissible Uses 

0 Donovan Smith - Proposed ARP Funded City Projects & Previous Projects 
0 Matt Gibb, Attorney -ARP Related Business Development, Job Creation, & Leveraging Funds 
0 Peter Gleek, IT Professional - Smart City & Broadband 



DISTRICT 5 & DISTRICT 7 
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN TOWN HALL 

LOCATION: SALVATION ARMY - HOLLAND COMMUNITY CENTER 

DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2021 AT 6:00 PM 

IN-PERSON ATTENDEES: 13 

VIRTUAL ATTENDEES: 260 

PANELISTS: 
0 Vern Gustafsson, Planning - Proposed ARP Funded City Projects 

0 Linnette Phi!lips, Economic Development - Business Development Funding Opportunities 

0 Matt Gibb, Attorney- Leveraging Funds & Pontiac Smart City 
0 Abdul Siddiqui, Engineer - Storm Sewer Infrastructure 

0 Darin Carrington, Finance Director- ARP Introduction and Eligibility Requirements 



PONTIAC NON-PROFITS 
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN TOWN HALL 

LOCATION: OAKLAND UNIVERSITY- THE OAKLAND CENTER 

DATE: NOVEMBER 6, 2021 AT 10:00 AM 

IN-PERSON ATTENDEES: 19 

PANELISTS: 
0 Mayor Deirdre Waterman - Strategic Planning and Leadership 

0 Linnette Phillips, Economic Development - Business Development & Citizen Relief 

0 Alexandra Borngesser, Grants - Permissible Uses 
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS FROM 



,~~J~ 
·.•~ 

ltd 
: . ,.;;;,i 
···•·.:u, 

re~ 
;~j§ith! 
~ 

:~ 
.......•.. ~ 

·•·~ •~.\. ~,,,;;-"'"'· 
~~.1.;J,( 

tlubr;;:y~~ 
dttrnping~ 



ISSUE SPACE OCCURANCE 



ISSUE SPACE OCCURANCE 
ARTS AND CULTURE: 4 

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT & JOB CREATION: 18 

INFRUSTRUCTURE:28 

NEIGHBORHOOD REVITILIZATION: 30 

PUBLIC SAFETY: 7 

SMART CITY INITIATIVES: 10 

YOUTH:6 



To'Wn Hall Findings and Results 

7 Recurring Themes From Resident Feedback: 
0 0wner Occupied Home Improvement & Rent-to-own Programs 
~City-Wide Broadband Internet 
0 Police & Fire Investments 
~Clinton River Trail Improvements 
0 Youth Recreation & Enrichment 
0 Sidewalks & Road Repair 
0 Small Business Support 



Leveraging Other ARP Sources 
0 0akland County- $244.2M 

0 State of Michigan - $6.548 

0 0akland County K-12 Schools - $257M 

0 0akland University- $39.4M 

0 0akland County Home Improvement - $10.4M 



KEY PROJECTS FOR IMMEDIATE FUNDING 

The Executive Office of Mayor Deirdre Waterman, used public feedback 
derived from the American Rescue Plan Town Halls to begin the 

strategic planning for key projects for immediate funding. 

Those projects include the following: 



Key Projects 
Lighthouse - Emergency Services for Pontiac Residents 

Habitat for Humanity - Affordable Housing Gap Fund 

Oakland University/ Pontiac Initiative - Non-Profit Incubator 

Centro Multicultural La Familia - Infrastructure and Programming 

Small Business Program - Small Business Development 

City-Wide Broadband lntemet - Pontiac Smart City Initiative 

Workers and Families Program - Citizen Relief & Job Creation 

Investing in Housing and Neighborhoods - Citizen Relief 

Department of Public Works - Infrastructure Repairs 



• . • . t . C> • • . • 
0 • . ~ ,,. . 

t .. . . . ... - • - I I . . . . . - 0 
. . 

.: .,_ 
! 

I 
. • . ·~ . . 

"' ft • 
> .. • 

0 i . 
" 

• ! 
@ 

C 
$ 

\; ~ . 

.,.-, • . .. • • • t 

C &! • 
~ t . ' . • 0 

. 
' 
. • • ~ J. ' . • ,, . .. l . . 

$ • .. t . 
• .... a ff .. ,.., - . : . 

(, - IS 
}!!, 

It • 



Question & Answer 



#4 
SPECIAL 

PRESENTATION 



~ OF P, 
v' !Ii 

Mayor's 2021 Year End Report :rit,_: 
Status of Departm.ental Strategic Agendas MtH;~~~ 



American Rescue Plan Act Funding 





J,i~~:J~~t~·~ctt,ri•J,~J·· 
;~_i-;;~.i-~:~~~~;;~-~~•-•-~~t;t·n,.~.t,:~'4.t>·!-'ttt~ 
ln_~~~•I ~-_ll~~~t,io~l, .. _,~":o'.:~~~:pro~~~•~) 

·,· ~- Stco-nd S01'-wlU h• r•t:•lv•rt.1) month• 

}_-··.:: :-:::':: .. :;,.';;:-:', ·-):,:._,_:_:;: .. , :::_- :':::,:•,\.', /' ·,:·,i:'i :, 
··~•\ ,~.t;i~~~-~.4-":_Pf)~,~• _u~~,!~--~~,~-~~!Y\t1}f~-~~-~l:i 

~~,~t_;~~,:'.~Ut;~~~-~ .~f~.~f~Y, :~_t;~~-•--~~,~-i~ ::•+ 1'11nth:c11nnon,o·rlv~Ui1-d. lnlO ,nr,y l1f'r»ton fu~·d 

:·iuoi1d1t11i·n11ts···.•, 
;/r·~1tdi:_ii;•~~~-:b/t1~J:i;~{~:~~J~•~;'~1iii'd14 
~!-. th~~:tM~:bo·cOrii'niitt~i'.~rid t~ii i~tlt 

j;ti,1s;·1thr:',: 



Job Pipeline & Ernployrnent Opportunities 

€J Detro It Free Press 

Pontiac-based United Shore to hire ·1,500 more despite 

pandemicf recession 
Exterior of United Shore's ne1,,v headquarters in Pontiac. Mich. A Pontiac-based 
mortgage firm is preparing to hire 1,500 nevl employees this ... 
rvtay 27, 2020 







>-1- I 

...J 

co 
~ 
Vl 
...J I 

<C 
u 
z 
<C z 
u.. 
~ 
z 
> w 
:c 
u 
<C 

• 





Youth Center & Engagement 







0 
UJ <( 
~z 
~ <( 
z :::) 
- :c 1--z~ 
LU <( 
~~ 
UJ 
...J 
a. 
~ 







Phoenix Center Deal 

lffl The Oakland Press 

Pontiac might buy Ottawa Towers for $19.9 mHlion 1 create 
new Phoenix Center settlement 
It's a 519.9 rnilHon deal that would see the city 01Nn the Phoenix Center 

structure, the to'l.vers and the old Purdue Academy at 25 souU1 Sanford SL ... 

Oct 26. 2020 





__J 

~ 
LU 
z 
LU 
~ 

LU 

~ 
0 
LU 
~ 
~ 



V) 
~ 
LJJ 
> z 
0 u 
a.. 
0 
0 
..J 
C 
~ 

; 
C 
0 
0 
$-



WOODWARD LOOP PICTURES 

·.:.A. ......._ 

'1 



O1THER TO1 PICS INCLU:DIE 

· Spirit of Pontiac Foundation 
w Affordable Ho1 using Plan 
·Vision for New Public Library 
· Oakland U niversity/Pontiaic Partnership 
·Collective lmpa1 ct 
· Mayor's Annual Partners In Progress Awards 



0 ORY 

' . ,,, ,,. , .. ' 
1• •fl;, 1! I••• f •, l• 

I • • tf 1 /, 

1f ;,_,t I .,, .. ,., .. ' 

. ,, . ' 

r ,-.!,, 

ti ,.,, .,,,! .i., 

, .. ! • J ,., • , ,. 

1·, 1, I•· • •I 1 ,'I 

I', •''••JI 



! 
I 

! 
I 
i 
r. 
t 
r 

~ z -V,1 
:::) 
0 1 
J: 
UJi 
_Ji 

al 
< 
0 1 
~ 
0 
LL 
LL. 
<( 

-. 

..:; 

. -
l( 
J( 

)' 

. ---: 
--
"! 

"! --
"! 

:.. . 
,.. , -- .. .. :. 

I. .f 
.. •-, 

I. 

:. 

:. :.. 
I. 

:.. 
:. .. 
-: -: 

.. 
;:: 

"! 
"! -: . -

:. 

( I. 
,. ., 
:. 

"! -- ·-' 
-: -: :. ., 

-: 
-: . i. 

I. -- • -: . .. ... • .. 't -: -
•· --: 
~ :. ... - -

I :. . 
I. 

, ' I. .. .. :. 
':; - -: 

:. :. .. 
:. 
:. 
•-

-
:. - ~ - . - . 
, ' . 
---= -.._ - :,.: 

"' 
...,.. ..., 

.... ... , 
-• ., 

V 
.... . . w - -: -- -: :. 0 -- :., a: _, 

a.. .... 
" . - . - -

"' 
.. ": --: z ": :. 

"': 
,.__, 

"' :> :. . -
0 - -. - - . .. -J: - V ... ... V _, 

~ --w :. ,f " .... - .., .... 
-' = .. -,.._ -a) -~ 

< .. --. ·---0 ~. 
~ --a: -• 
"" 0 

. ... 
~ - X .... ... . 

.... " .... 
< ...., C. ,_, 

";;: . - -..... - :. ..., 
-; - :. _; ... .... -" 

.., . . - .. -
'-

, ... "' .., 

• 



2C .. /•.;t,9 I-l:~!JYCrJ ·r: 
T...J.N·r:F.INCi- LJ.RBA.N. AC.:I--:II·EVE.JVI'EN.'":1 ..... 

ANl',:.> .AC::A:f:>E.M.TC:: EXC::.ELL.E.N·c:T~ 

A collaboratfon between Oal<land University and the City of Pontiac 





2019 PARTNER IN PROGRESS 



, '"'""'"':-~,,~:·:•::· ·•,.,.,, .. ,_ L .' -:!1"•~~-~~ ."l-•~-"'-"':"--''--"'11"'"''-"' • ,_,._,.. ., .... ,.~ ~,,., ... -~ •• -~•••.-••-----

¥ 

02:1 !PAR'TNE,R IN PIR01G.RiES:S 





#8 

RESOLUTION 



Pontiac City Council Resolution 

WHEREAS, this resolution is to formally express in writing the Pontiac City Council's Resolution of No 
Confidence in Mayor Deirdre Waterman: and, 

WHEREAS, the Resolution of No Confidence in Mayor Deirdre Waterman is intended to bring ·an 
awareness to the citizens of Pontiac of the failed Mayoral leadership, disregard for transparency and 
accountability and total disrespect for the legislative branch of government, thereby undermining the 
democratic process; and, 

WHEREAS, the pattern of failed leadership is evident with, the feeble working relationship between the 
Administration and Council, the high employee turnover (this reflects poor decision-making, and the lack 
of skills to mentor, retain or develop leadership), low morale, unotthodox hiring practices and excessive 
and dispropo11ionate spending in complete defiance of the balanced and line"item budget passed by the 
Council, and, 

WHEREAS, the Council as the legislative body and an equal brnnch of government, attempted to perform 
the duties and responsibilities outlined in the chatter, but more often than not, Council's rights were usurped 
by the Mayor; and 

WHEREAS, provision 3.115 ofthe Chatter states that Council may, within appropriations p1'ovided in the 
budget, appoint or contract for services and 4.204 allows Council to obtain the opinion or advice of 
independent legal counsel in any matte1· pending before it; and, 

WHEREAS, the Council attempted to retain the legal services of Clark Hill PLC, Parliamentarian services 
from Ms. Eleanor Siewett and accounting services, mores specifically, a forensic audit from Bonadio & 
Co., LLP, Ce11ified Public Accountants, 

WHEREAS, the Mayor commandeered Council's authol'ity and both severed the contractual relationships 
with Clark Hill and Eleanor Siewe1t by failing to pay their outstanding invoices for almost two years, and 
impeded Council from entering into an agreement with Bonadio & Co, LLP to pe1form a forensic audit by 
disregarding the resolution passed by Council to engage Bonadio, only for the City attorney to ultimately 
tell the Council, "NO;H and, 

WHEREAS, 4.106 of the Chatter states that the Mayor may, within the appropriations pl'ovided in the 
budget, appoint such assistants and secretaries to the staff of the office of the Mayor as may be teasonably 
necessary and 4.106 states that the Mayor shall appoint for each department of the executive btanch a 
director who serves at the pleasure of the Mayor, each appointment is subject to approval by the Council; 
and, 

1 



WHEREAS, many of the Administration's positions have not and are not within the appropriations 
provided in the budget and some of the appointments presented to Council fot approval were not confirmed, 
including the current "Interim Deputy Mayort the "Interim Finance Director/' a former Finance Director, 

and a past and present DPW Director; and, 

WHEREAS, despite the Mayor's appointees not being confirmed, the individuals continued and continue 
to be employed with the City of Pontiac under the auspices of being called "Interim~" and," 

WHEREAS, going as far back as September 4, 2018, the Mayor presented a resolution to Council to 
approve Mayoral recommendation to reappoint members to the Planning Commission, the resolution failed; 
however, to date, the Planning Commission members continue to serve and no subsequent appointments 
have been presented to Council for approval; and, · 

WHEREAS, boards and commissions are no exception to the requirement that Council must approve a 
Mayoral appointment, section 4.109 of the charter states that reappointment of a person to the same board 
or commission fol' an additional consecutive term is subject to appl'Oval by the Council; and, 

WHEREAS, the Mayot's lack of accountability and routine disregarded fot resolutions by Council are 
astounding, as her rationale for discarding Council resolutions, resolutions are merely advisory or requests; 
and, 

WHEREAS, in June 2021 Council passed the 2021-2022 Annual Budget; and, 

WHEREAS, Council in its desire for the children of Pontiac to have a state-of-the-art youth recreation 

facility, did not approve the purchase of 825 Golf Drive and has continued to allocate and restrict $3.2 

million dollars in the annual budget for a youth recreation facility; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac's lease agreement for 825 Golf Dr. ended on June 30, 2021 and in 

contemplation of the move, Council in passing a fiscally responsible, balanced budget, cut the millage in 

half, thereby reducing the amount tax payers would have to pay, due to the fact that there would be no 
expenses related to a facility, but the programming would continue, as there are sufficient funds generated 

from the millage to cover these costs; and, 

WHEREAS, after the budget was passed and at the end of June 2021, the Mayor presented a resolution to 

Council requesting authorization to execute a three (3) month extension to the Lease Agreement for 825 
Golf Drive in order to allow the City to re-program youth activities and to determine a place and process 

for vacating the premises, the motion failed; and, 

WHEREAS, though Council reduced the millage by 50%, eliminated items in the budget that only related 

to maintaining the cost of the youth recreational facility and United Wholesale Mortgage revealed through 

a press conference its desire to provide Pontiac with a $10 Million Dollar youth recreation facility, no 

attempt was made by the Mayor to locate an alternate site. It is evident that it was never the intention of the 

Mayor to vacate 825 Golf Dr. even though the Mayor insisted and expressed in her resolution "holding 

over" would be for "just three (3) months/' time needed to vacate the premises or attempt to secure another 

location, as six (6) months later, the Mayor continues to have PYREC housed at 825 GolfDr.; and, 

WHEREAS, Council made unsuccessful and repeated attempts to discuss with the Mayor rehabbing the 

Ewalt Center and on June 18, 2020, the Council passed a resolution and allocated $25,000.00 in the bud.get 

2 



to have a feasibility study done for the Ewalt Center, the study was finally provided to Council almost a 
year later on May 11, 2021) but with no collaborative effort from the Mayor to take steps to develop the 
Center; and, 

WHEREAS} on April 16, 2019, Council adopted a resolution to instmct the City Attorney to amend the 
City of Pontiac~s ordinance 2287 to place the Cable Division and appointment of the Cable Director back 
under the legislative branch of government, returning it back to how it was prior to emergency management. 
The Mayor vetoed the resolution, but Council passed a resolution to override the Mayor's veto on July 29, 
2019 and despite overriding the veto, Cable continues to be under the Mayor. 

WHEREAS, on August 27, 2019, the Council adopted an ordinance to amend Chapter 42 ''Community 
Development" to add A1ticle VII entitled "Provisioning Center Community Benefits Agreements in order 
to allow developers of provisioning centers to enter into Community benefits agreements that would 
identify potentially negative aspects of such developments and identify proportional community benefits to 
the City of Pontiac to rectify those negative aspects. On September 6, 2019, the Mayor vetoed the ordinance 
and on September 10, 2019, Council overrode the Mayor's veto. To date, Pontiac does not have a 
Community Benefits ordinance in place. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council hereby passes this resolution of 
No Confidence in Mayor Defrdre Waterman with the most sincere confidence and expectation that the next 
Administration will restore transparency, accountability and respect for the legislative branch of 
government, ultimately embracing democracy. 

3 



Pontiac Voters Spoke Loud and Clear - In an unprecedented vote/ 70 percent of citizens 

overwhelming went to the polls to pass a youth center millage that authorizes the city to fund up to roughly 
$900,000 each year, for 10 years -from 2017 to 2026-to provide funding for a youth center and programming. 
Under state law (MCL 123.461) levied funds can only be used to operate a center open exclusively to youths under 
21 years of age and aimed at curbing juvenile delinquency within the community. ***MIiiage funds CAN NOT be 
used to acquire1 build a building or repair an existing one. Legally, millage funds CAN ONLY be used for 
programming and operating costs.*** 

Unfortunately, within the last few months, Pontiac has encountered an uptick in violent crime1 gun violence, and a 
record-number of homicides have occurred within the first few months off the new year. The majority of these 
crimes have been committed involving our youth - both victims and perpetrators. A youth center is desperately 
necessary! Action is needed, and we need to invest In our children's future now! 

The Best to Offer-Wisner Center is a state~of-the-art, viable site that Is available to us now. 
Having recently undergone a $4.6 million renovation, the facility and grounds are safe, secure, well-lit, ADA 
compliant, and conveniently located on 21 beautiful acres within the heart of Pontiac. Wisner Center features a 
high-tech computer lab, recording studio, high speed flber"optic system, site projectors, spacious community 
rooms, and expansive outdoor track and fields, The opportunities at Wisner Center are just like our kld 1s potential 
- limitless! 

Our Kids Futures Are Priceless -The cost for leasing the Wisner Center Is very reasonable I 

considering all the benefits that are Included in the lease price which is currently being negotiated. More details will 
be released as they develop. At this juncture, the projected cost would annually Invest valuable dollars Into the 
School District of Pontiac which is the owner of the Wisner property. 

A Smart "Win-Win"' -The School District of the City of Pontiac benefits from this proposal and It 

is a uWin-Wln11 for our children and both, the city and school district. Legally, we may enter into contract with 
their lessee, Wisner, LLC., as the sublessee of Wisner Center. 

Our Own State-of-the-Art Youth Center - Plans for a City of Pontiac owned and 
operated Youth Center are underway. Wisner is proposed to be used as the youth center along with proposed 
satellite gym sites throughout the city. It ls also proposed to offer mini-grants to community partners for youth 
recreation projects. 

We hold our children's future in our hands. Long~term planning for site development, construction, and 
recreational sustainability take a unified community effort to achieve our dream of a state-of-the~art community 
center. Let's start nowl 



September 4, 2018 

Ayes: Williamss Woodward, Cat'ter, Millet\ Taylo1·-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Car1•icd. 

18-334 Resolution to approve Mayoral recommendntion to reappoint the following 
individuals to the Planning Commission. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson 
Tayl01·-But'ks. 

Whel'eas, Article V. Section 2-3 72 of the Municipal Code, the Pla11ning Commission is comprised of six " 
non .. elected officials and the Mayol' or his/her designee; and Aiu·, 

Whereas, there are OUl'l'ently several appointlllents with exph'ed ter.:mi1~§i1 the Planning Commission; and 
Whereas, accot·ding to State Law and City Ordinance, the Mayg ii'"1"trappoint the commissioners suqject 
to the approval by a majority of the City Council. .{;· ·(·'· ~-
Now, Therefore, Be It resolved, that the based upon the rec~:.~ .. - -i!~,npfthe Mayor, that the City 
Council reappoint the following individuals to the tet·m t"'',~tell below: ";·~'.{f~fih. 

/§"' ·•~I(::tta; 
Ashley Fegley- July 1, 2016 to June~~~1t:- · '19 '· 

·f·"'''"' Lucy Payne - July 1, 2017 to June 30~ ·29~p. 
Ch1'istopher Northci·oss -July 1, 2018 to

1!~~~1.~0, 20~, 
Dayne Thomas - July 1, 20t to June 30, 2<Y~R}\1;:;, , .. 

/J:-~' ~,.I, \;;:f~'t•;.i:) 
·' :•!''-\•.,,,,~,, ':,,.? 

Ayes: Woodward \ . ;i~f~·:,,,i ''::=~~if;'f;;i>~. 
No: Carter, Miller, Tayloi1~ijfR§}i~l ·man and\~i:W.ams 

Resolution Failed. '~"'• . ., '"'i!lijj!~,f1.!:~,',_:,· •. ·'~·-··:.·. 

4
,·,{~tt i:. '!f:i_h•, , .,.,.;~ ;.-

18-335 ResoluJl~ilf ·tllilAJnerican "~gion .. , .. ,. , .. i~l!lost~iO's 98th Anniversary. Moved 
by Councilperson w o·t ':~~7;~{

5):' and sW~~:: d by Cou~f] ' '-i\ Wate'tmt(,\.~ 
.,,::,;i:~iih~,, .. 'J, 

Whereas, It is with warm arr'.d~:~.½cere,t tltude that w~f~aciously recognize the American Legion Cook .. 
Nelson Post~i.Qt" ::1ityears 'dr{JJly§.{i\Q f:~itwfa~, to vifft~ps, service members and the community; and, 
Wherea~f ·~it?'·. Jrea::':' e ion vr~''tft~-;;~ rtere,Nr~t re§lJtn 1919 as a patriotic veterans ot·ganization, 
focusi .. ··• .,,:~ .. ervice to v "§, ser , embers a . ~mmunities; and, 
Whereas;ifhJ~,American Leg ]ft~~vo1v" , lnn a group of war .. weary veterans of World War I into one of 
the most irifi~~Jl!ial nonproflt''~$t,i,ps in t 't®l:m:nJted States with membership swiftly escalating to over 1 
million, and i86~tnosts springingtuhi,aoross t!\ilcountry; and, 
Whereas, today;\mi~pership stanaitlt over 2.4 million in 14,000 posts worldwide as the posts are 
organized into 55 de\U1ltr,pents: on~Jltw· each for the so states, along with the District of Columbia, Puerto 
Rico, France, Mexico'•~Yf~lt~e PhUf.~Rlhes; and, 
Whereas, the American Dif1•c i .. ~t8.1e~Nelson Post #20 js located in Pontiac, is considered a historica1 site 
and is one of Michigan's ol ··.~r~~fHcan American Post; and, 
Whereas, the American Legioti"Cook-Nelson Post #20 is named after Captain James C. Cook and 
Lieutenant Elmer B. Nelson; and, 
Whereas. the American Legion Cook-Nelson Post #20 has remained steadfast in its efforts to influence 
social change, obtain benefits for veterans and create important programs for children and youth; and,. 
Whel'eas, the American Legion Cook-Nelson Post #20 hosts many annual community projects under the 
leadership of Commander Joe Ca1·r and Auxiliary President Sandra Carter, the projects include, in the 
month of Febt'llal'y, the Black History Tea, which showcases leadership and children in Pontiac, in April, 
Spring in to Reading> encoul'ages children to read, in June, the Michigan Veterans Foundations al'e 
provided toiletries, tea and clothing, in October, Bl'east Cancer Awareness Seminars are hosted and both 

3 



July 10~ 2018 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac wishes to exercise its dgltt of first tefusal to purchase the following 
properties under MCL 211.78 M(1 ): 1571 Giddings, Parcel No, #1410327022 and 68 Lake Street, Pa1·cel 
No. #1432153011. 
Now, Therefo1·e, Be It Resolved> tl1at the City of Pontiac agrees to reserve the following properties: t 571 
Giddings, Pal'Cel No,# 1410327022 and 68 Lake Stt'eet) Parcel no. #1432153011, per its right of first 
refusal under PA 123 of 1999 and that all resolutions and parts of resolutions, h1sofar as they conflict with 
the provisions of theil' resolution> al'e hereby rescinded. 

Ayes: Waterman 
No: WHliams, Carte1\ Millet', Pietila, Tayl01· .. Burks .,;-.':. ... 
R I t. F •1 :i .-~;,i;:,,'I., eso U IOU t 81 eh. ./.•':':{-:~:::~~ 
Councilperson Woodward was absent during tlJ~iY.Qf<ff 

,,,;j,~1~;~:~>t~?:kt,:~·. 
l 8w267 Resolution regarding salary inc1·ease f~1<lf~fMaf&t::1tpd City Council. (ad .. on) 
Moved by Councilpexson Taylor--Bul'ks and second byJltj~mcllperson e~r!~f. 

,.ikliJl1;:,· '~),\Wi~:J;•;-~ . 
Whereas, on January 11, 2018, the resolution fr2m1!f1e Local Office1·s C6nXi:tt?11sation Commission to 
increase salaries for the Mayo1· and the City Cotl'n~jhfailed; and, ,:~~j~};~1 ... 

Whereas, :he intention of the Council not to accepft~~fl~01:eas_f,tl~t~alaries for'-ti~\tJ~!!te M~yo1· and 
the Conned was made clear through tl1~tstatements and :~9.tt9AM~~en by the CounoU~m their efforts by 
resolution, to adopt by 2/3 of the mett\~;J!:}::$:J.~cted to andl~!~~ng on the body, to rejebt the 
recommendation of the Local Office1•s'G,~)Ji~~~~~~ion Comiiii!~Jpn, as it was also clear, that if the 
~ouncil bad done nothi!1g, the de.termi!1atl.~1.t11iecq~1m~ndatiori''6l,tl\? Commission would have gone 
m effect 30 days followmg the filmg wtth tlt~fClerkra.n9.f,.~-... ··1.t:{i~t!,·, 
Whereas, on or around J\lb:rl~ti1QJ8, Cound(~fufmbei:s·!~lt~~.;x~red im~~uestioned why Council 
membel's were going t9.JJ;,~,g.eive:'~n::m~antioipatij?l,.1~h~9.Ji~ftoitfitJ1'rtQlty; ahd, 
Whereas, the Council~wlt'f inform·~aJthat they wir\,j}o11ig to re~~1vlan increase in salary of 

._~.t:<•t~tt~\. -.!:-.:iJ\ 1,❖•!•t;;_;.• .... ~,,",:';- •,.~ 

approximately Six Hunot{g.,J$681.5$ 'i_ ighty .. Oti'(~!Ro11ar and Fifty .. Eight Cents; and, 
Whereas, the amount of tnSJr,t.Qrea .... :,. -~~ts the drff.~:nmce of the salary of $15,000 per year and the 
Local OffixJJ:~J)~WB~!~satio1t:qa~,m~- lilit~.f~£0IDOi~ll~~d salary increase of, $16,500 per year, · t t· ... .,t''•"•,:r~:,,,.,,.,. ..• 1··,2018 ~····o· -.,;.,~ii" •. .,;,_., •. ,,,~,.. ,,,,,..~.·, te mac 1ve "·i.1anua v,,. • an ,.,,.,,-· ·\.,•~;,.,.:.,,.,., ·:.:-,-'._-· 

...... ; .. ~;,;/ ... ~~ '1.:)~\l?~:::{~~ ' l~~~.:ii-:,.. ···~.Att~~~\~~{1;.::)\ \!.](\ ~ 

Whe1'eA$./.the Council i"e~~jy~d a cn~9.k. reflectin'i:fth!i::Jnorease on July 5, 2018; and, 
WhereJ~}i:fh~ distl'ibution ·t&l(1-~; incri~~~:,1,:ecommen~'ed by the Looal Officers Compensation 
Commissf&Hl$,Jlllauthol'izecf'an:a.:a.gainsHff~,.J anuary 11, 2018 resolution adopted by the Council 
which rejecteff'.#t~trecommend·tt,t9J} to pr~t(ije Council with a ten (10%) percent increase and the 
Mayor a thJrtee~;{l%~(o) percent (,ii{ease; a_nd. , 
Wltel'eas, retent101t:'o,f}fl~e extra c~.mpensat1on payments by the Council and the Mayor would 
appear to violate Ai-tiol~}:,~~' Se9t,J5J_ij-' 3 of the Michigan Constitution which prohibits the City from 
granting or authodzing heX:~•a:c6ffi!.pensation to any public officer, agent or contractor after the 
service has been rendered ·ol{f.}jffontraot ente1·ed into. 0 

Now, Therefore Be It ResolveB, that the Pontiac City Council does not accept the salary increase 
recommended by the Local Officers Compensation Commission, willretum the increase and demands 
that any future enhanced payments to the Council, reflecting the January 2018 recommendation of 
the Local Officers Compensation Commission be stopped immediately and stt'ongly encourages the 
Mayo1· to do the same. 

Ayes: Williams, Carte1-, Mille1·, Taylo1'-Burks and Waterman 
No: Pietila 
Resolution Passed. 

4 



Pontiac City Council Resolution 

19 .. 137 Rosolution fox' the City Attorney. to Amend Ordinance #2288 to change how City 
Council adopts the budget from functional hnsis to Une item basis.Moved by Councilpel'son Taylor .. 
Burks and seom1d by Couuoilparson Ctuter, · 

Wheteas, the Pontiao Munioipul Code and Pontluo O!'dinance No, 2288, sec 4, dated June 27> 2013 
provides that the budget shall b6 adopted ou a functional basis for expenditures> rathe11 than on a 
departmental 01' line jtem basis; and, 
WJ1erens, it is Jn the best interest of the Clty of Pont lac to amend the ourrent ol'dinance to allow the budget 
to be adopted on a line item basis fo1• expendltut·es t·ather than on a funotionnl basis; and, 
Whereas, money shall J)ot bB moved wlthin departments without the Pontiac City Council's approval; 
end, 
Whereas) pursuant to the Pontiac City Charter more spaolfionlly, seotlon 4.202, the City Attomey ts 
JteJ'eby instmoted to amend the ordinance pursuant to the resolution passed by the Pontiac Clty Council by 
May I, 2019, 
Now, Thel'efore, Be, It Resolved, that no mol'e than Te11 Thousand ($10,000.00) DoHars shall be aUoca.ted 
and changed to a different funotion within a depat•hnent wlthout the Pontiac City Council's appl'ova.l and 
the cm·tent 2019 .. 2020 budget shall be.adopted by line ltem fol' expenditul'es, 

Ayes: PietHa, Taylo11...Butks1 Waterman, Williams, Woodwa.1·d, Ca1ier and MilJer 
No:None 
Retmlutlon Passed. 

Adopted by CcuncH ':\ .- \ h-1 q . , 
Forwarded to Awyor ...... g -, ~~-:- \ g 
Vet0$d by ~yor ,... ~ , .. ._. 
Written St&t~ment Reeetved_,._ __ 

. Forwarded to th& Clerk ... ~ ---'2.b,-;-)S 

~ , .. ·4~' 



April 23, 2019 Approved Minutes 

19-147 Motion to amend resolution to add language that states "for the last 12 months" after 
"these matters which are currently before the City Council" to authorize the Law Firm of Clark Hill 
PLC, to provide advice and or a Legal Opinion to the Pontiac City Council in the Matters regarding 
the Mayor's recent Appointments, Hires and Unapproved Salaries that are currently before the City 
Council. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, and Taylor .. Burks 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 
Councilwoman Mary Pietila was absent during the vote. 

19-148 Resolution to Authorize the Law Firm of Clark Hill PLC, to Provide advice and or a 
Legal Opinion to the Pontiac City Council in the Matters Regarding the Mayor's Recent 
Appointments, Hires and Unapproved Salaries that are Currently before the City Council, for the 
last 12 months. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Whereas, in lieu of the Mayor's recent appointments, hires and unapproved salaries, the City Council has 
dete1mined that pursuant to section 4.204 of the Pontiac City Charter~ these matters~ which are currently 
before Council, for the last 12 months, require an opinion and advice of independent counsel. 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council hereby authorizes the Law Firm of Clark 
HilI PLC, to provide advice and or a legal opinion. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Wate1man 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-149 Suspend the Rules to vote on Item # 6. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and 
second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-150 Resolution to approve contract increase for Matthew Neale, Esq., Miller, Canfield, 
Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. to serve as the Professional Expert-Medical Marihuana not to exceed 
$25,000.00 and Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Final Agreement. Moved by Councilperson Pietila 
and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac has contracted with Matthew Neale, Esq,, Miller, Canfield, Paddock and 
Stone, P.L.C. to provide professional expert assistance to the City Clerk under Ordinance 2357 (B) not to 
exceed $10,000, and 
Whereas, City Council has to approve contracts over $10,000, and the City of Pontiac wishes to increase 
Mr. Neale's contract not to exceed a total amount of $25,000. 

4 



April 9, 2019 Study Session Approved Minutes 

Ayes: Woodward, Carter, Millel', Pietila, Taylor-Bui-ks; Waterman nnd Willimns 
No: None · 
Resolution Pnssed, 

19 .. 125 An Emel'geucy Ordinance to nmend Ordiurmce 2361 nu Emel'geucy Ordinnuce thnt 
nmen<lecl the City of Pontlnc,s Zoning Orclinnnce to Include Medical Mnrilmnnn fncility nses in 
clesiguntccl overlny districts to include the following nmeudments: Amend Article 2, Chnptel' 1, 
Section 2.101, Tnblc 1- Zoning Dishicts, Spccinl Pur1>oso Zoning Districts; Amend Al'ticle 2, 
Chnptc1· 2, Section 2,203, Tnblc 2 - Uses Permitted by District; Al'tlclc 2, Cha1>ter 5 -Development 
Stnuclnrds fo1• Specific Uses is nmended to ndd Sections, 2.544, 2.545, 2.546, 2.547, nnd 2.548; 
At'ticle 3 - Specinl Purpose Zoning DisMcts is nmended to ndd Chapter 11 .. Meclicnl Mn1·ihuann 
Overlny Distl'ict, nml Article 7 .. Definitions is nmeuded to ndd Chnpter 2 nud Chnpte1· 3, Section 
7.202, 7,203 nucl 7,301. Pursunut to Pontinc City Charter Provision 3.112[eJ, this is au 
EMERGERNCY ORDINANCE to rcgulote the ptolifomtion of mcdicnl marihnnnn fncilities within 
the City of Pontlnc nncl thereby ensure the hen Ith nud safety of Its residents, as such, slmll be gi:ven 
immediate effect. Moved by Conncilpe1·s011 Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Bmks. 

Ayes: Carter, Millet\ Pietila, Taylor-Bui•ks, Waterman, Williflms and Woodward 
No: None 
Ordinn nee Paused. 

*The Ordinance is nttnched ns Exhibit A.* 

Council President Williams requested a legal opinion from the City Attorney on the issue that Council 
President Pro-Tem Cmte1· raised about the ol'dinance inconsistency with State law pertaining to Medical 
Matilnmna grow facilities, 

l 9~126 
Miller. 

Suspend the Rules. Moved by Councilperson Woodward ond second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Miller, Tnylor~Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward ond Carter 
No: Pietila 
Motion Cnrl'led. 

19 .. 127 Resolution to npprove Mayor's Appointment of Mr. Hughey Newsome, ns Finance 
Dfrectol' for the City of Poutinc nt nu nmmnl salnl'y of $131,040 effective Apl'il 15, 2019. Moved by 
Councilperson Woodwnrd nnd second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Whereas, Subsequent to the resignation of our Fimu1ce Director, Nevrus Nazarko, a vacancy for the 
appointed Finance Director position was crented; and 
Whereas, Hughey Newsome has previously served in capacity of Chief Financial Officer, has earned two 
Master's degrees; and has the skills needed to serve the City of Pontiac in the copncity of Finance 
Director; and 

3 



April 9, 2019 Study Session Approved Minutes 

Whereas, A11icle IV, Chapter 1, Section 4.106,of the Home Rule Chatter states that the Mayor shall 
oppoiutment for each depm1ment of the executive branch a di.rector for each depm1meut, subject to the 
apprnval by Council; and 

Whereas, the Mayor has appointed Nfr, Hughey Newsome to the position of Finance Director, contingent 
011 Council approval; and 
Now. Therefore, Be.It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council does hereby approve Hllghey Newsome to 
serve at the Finance Director perfonning the required duties and obligations of the Finance Director 
effective, Monday, April 1 S) 2019 at the base salary of $131,040.00. 

Ayes: Pietila, Waterman and Woodward 
No: Taylor-Burks, Williams, Caiter and Miller 
Resolution Failed. 

Received communication from the Mayor regftrding letter to address City Council resolution requesting 
that Giammrco, Mullins & Horton> P.C., assign another Attomey to Appear at City Council Meetings. 

Councihnan Don Woodward left the meeting. 

19-128 
Pietila. 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Tnylor-Burks nnd second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Taylor-Bul'ks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Ca1-ried, 



April 23, 2019 Approved Minutes 

19-141 Approval of the meeting minutes of April 16, 2019. Moved by Councilperson Pietila 
and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Attorney Clark - Update on CPREA (City of Pontiac Retired Employees Asso~iation) will bring back on 
Tuesday. 

Nineteen (19) individuals addressed the body during public comment. 

19-142 Suspend the rules to vote on items #2 ... #5. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and 
second by Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Passed. 

19-143 Resolution not to authorize tbe Establishment of the Position of Interim Finance 
Director. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Tayl01·~Burks. 

Whereas, the Pontiac City Charter does not provide for the role of "Interim Finance Director"; and, 
Whereas, the Pontiac City Council has not created a position for ''Interim Finance Director,,, 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council does not approve the position of Interim 
Finance Director. 

Ayes: Catier, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Butks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-144 Motion to call for tlte vote on Item #3. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by 
Councilperson Carter. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-145 Resolution not to authodze a Salary to be paid for the Position oflnterim Finance 
Director. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Whereas, section 4.301 of the Pontiac City Charter states, "a Finance Depatiment is created in the 
executive branch of City government. The Finance Director shall have direct supervision over the finance 
department and the administration of the financial affairs of the City, including-the keeping of accounts 

2 



April 23, 2019 Approved Minutes 

and financial records, the collection of taxes, special assessments and other revenue, and such other duties 
as may be prescribed by ordinance," and, 
Whereas, section 3.12 of the Pontiac City Charter provides, "no compensation or salary shall be paid to 
appointees, members of boards or commissions, or employees of the city except as apprnved by the 
Council." · 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council does not authorize a salary to be paid for 
the position of Interim Finance Director and hereby requires that before the position of Finance Director 
is filled, the Pontiac City Council must determine the salary. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Carter 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

19--146 Resolution to not approve the appointment of Hughey Newsome as Interim Finance 
Director. Council President Kermit Williams requested to amend the Resolution to approve Mr. 
Hughey Newsome to serve as Inte1·im Finance Director. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and 
second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Whereas, on Tuesday, April 9, 2019, the Pontiac City Council was presented with a resolution from the 
Mayor to approve the Mayor's recommendation to appoint Hughey Newsome as Finance Director for the 
City of Pontiac; and, 
Whereas, the resolution stated, "the Mayor has appointed Mr. Hughey Newsome to the position of Finance 
Director, contingent on Council approval, effective April 15, 2019;" and, 
Whereas, on April 9, 2019, the City Council voted and the resolution failed1 Hughey Newsome was not 
confirmed to the position of Finance Director; and, 
Whereas, the Mayor in an effort to circumvent the City Council, hired Hughey Newsome on April 17, 2019 
as Interim Finance Director; and, 
Whereas, the previous Finance Director was employed with the City of Pontiac for approximately five years 
and was paid, $121,800.00 annually; and, 
Whereas, the Mayor's request, is to pay Hughey Newsome $131,040.00 annually, a salary that exceeds the 
previous Finance Director's salary by ten thousand ($10,000.00) dollars; and, 
Whereas, the salary request exceeds the budgeted amount and has not been approved by the City Council; 
and, 
Whereas, section 4.106 of the Pontiac City Charter allows the Mayor to appoint a director who serves at 
the pleasure of the Mayor and with each appointment subject to approval of the Council; and, 
Whereas, only if a Mayoral appointment is not disapproved by the Council within 30 days is the 
appointment is effective, 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council approves Hughey Newsome 
serving as Interim Finance Director. 

Ayes: None 
No: Taylor-BurksJ Waterman, Williams> Carter, Miller and Pietila · 
Resolution Failed. 

3 



June 18, 2020 Approved 

20 .. 297 Motion to approve (DPW) Department of Public Works 265. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Watennan. 

Department of Public Works (DPW) (Dept. 265) 
rr. Account 101-265-818.037 Note: Contractual Janitorial Services (Flo01· Waxing, Carpet 

Cleaning) 
ss. Add $22,088.16 for Medical Marihuana Application Review For Engineering 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams) Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramsld and Taylor--Burks 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

DPW (Other Issues) 
20-298 Motion to approve DPW Depal'tment 265 other issues. Moved by Councilperson 
Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Other DPW Issues 
tt. Please provide a list of the right of way areas that MDOT is responsible for maintaining, 
uu. Increase Park budget by $150,000 to cover the cost of park camera, bathroom repairs and 

part-time park rangers) 
vv. Add $50,000 to Traffic Control for a Light Study 

Capital Outlay 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

20-299 Motion to approve Capital Outlay Fund 202. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and 
second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Capital Outlay (Fund 202) 
ww. Reduce Account202-478-779-004 to $40,000 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramsld, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

20-300 Motion to have a study on Ewalt Center Feasibility for $25,000. Moved by 
Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor--Burks, Waterman, Williams and Carter 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

6 



July 29, 2019 Special 

19 ... 382 Resolution to Override Mayor's Veto of Resolution 19 .. 364, the tesolution to 
approve Appeal 19-03 Special Exceptlon Permit ap11Hcation to sell packaged liquor at 1124 Joslyn 
Avemie from Kajy Enterprise~ Inc,, jHn·cel #64 .. 14-i6-402-030. :Moved by Councilperson Carter and 
second by Councilperson Taylo1·-Burks, 

WHEREAS, on July 16, 2019, the City Council adopted a Resolution to approve Appeal 19-03 
. Sp~cial Exception Permit application to· sell packaged Hquo1· at 1121! .... §lyn Avenue fromA&S Kajy ·. 
Enterprise, Inc., p.arcel #64 .. 14 .. 16-402~030 (Resolution 19 .. 364\J,,::;iE.\~,;Y-t . · . . .. 
WHEREAS> section 3.112(f) of the Home Rule Charter oft\ie.~~!~ of Pontiac~ M1ch1gan (Charter) 
1_·equires the City Cletk to present the resolution to the lvJ;!J:~[t~l{g}~~-
WHEREAS, on July 22> 2019, the Clerk presented ResolvJloij)l 9"3 64. tgJJie Mayor; and . 
WHBREAS, section 3.112 (f) of the Charter·aHow§._;,tlj.l:.Jvfoyor to velt(Ut~ resolution; a'nd, 

.!.<.!">,,"~':,>'h'Ji> •~t.-.:tot:~ 

WHEREAS, the Mayor issued a veto of Resoln!i.smJJ,9 .. 364; and, . ."'.'{if:{~\~ 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Charter section 3.112(1:);{i)ie City Council wlshettp):<tconsider Resolution 

--,f•!•~,tH ... ,· •;L'"•~.:•.•~\ \ • 

1.9-364 the resolution to approve Appeal 1~-03 Speo{~h:!xceptio~:>r~~1mit applic'atjf}~to sell pac~aged 
liquor at 1124 Joslyn Aven1.1e from A&S KaJy Enterpns~/(~\c., parqel,#64- l 4-16A02~.0~0 over the 
Mayor>s veto. Five affirmative votes '1I~l~H~ired by Chail\t~ie'.tLoK 3 l l 2(f). -~·\Iii) 
NOW.THEREFORE, BE IT RBSOL VED?b.y,Jhe Pontiac~itt:council that the Council hereby 

~-1* . .i',t~ ,:..':~·!-t.~.•!:+''"".... ~•.::•,:.. :,\~L,. 

adopts Resolutio:1 19-364 the resolutio11'lEJPP(?:r&/\PP,ea1.19.:q1~~,p~cial ~xception Pennit application 
to sell packaged hquor at 1124 Joslyn Avem.~-9.:from :i\~§.J{aJy Ente~P!J$e; Inc., parcel #64"14 .. 16~402 .. 

030 over the Mayor's ve,::·'.''.'K:~~:(~~'.>., '!~)\ .. ,.,:~~~}~'';t,; ... , '''({ &~~:, 
Ayes: ffaylcii\Bni:ks~·:~illiams, Wood\v~i:c.1/CaifotMillet· and Pietila 
No: N6i\~;i,~-.. . \iir\ . . ·:.·/t}}f ttYV . ··,:;:\J . 

ResolutionJ~~~secl. 1t>.! \f·,\:;h 
,.,,;::•:;,,,,::,:,,.... '•\\&k~\,. ,[l:i~t\if~{t~.t::,; ... , :tt&\ 

19 .. 3g3 ,/.:~\'{/:¥~~~.!!ft~fll tQ Oy~i~)cie Mnyptt,:Yeto'~fJlesolntion 19--369 to instruct the City 
Atton~~r.J~),foeud Cityj~f:f.ontiafQfdinnnce'2~.~I:,ftP:dillnce the Cnble Division and Appointment 
of the CaNp Director unilerj:ge legis1#iye branch ·ofCity government Moved by Councilperson 
TaylorMBuf%~Jtnd second b:/t~q9acilpe1iq!l:~p11er. 

·. ~ti~i\h\. ·-:~)Ji}:r, ··{f~J,)i 
WHEREAS) oiq!~Jy..._16, 2019, the}1~S.Y C01nicif adopted a Resolution to instruct the City Attorney to 
amend City of PoiiH~.!?.J,Qrdinance ~~§V and place the Cable Division and Appointment of the Cable 
Director i.mder the legl~li#ve brancli)if City government (Resolution 19-369; and) 
WHEREAS, section 3.Hi(f). o:(Jh:;~lfome Rule Charter of the City of Pontiac, Michigan (Charter) 

-:,""o,.~•, t•r•~l"~'+• •,l' 

requires the City Clerk to pr~~t~9he resolution to tl~e May?r; and, 
WHEREAS, on July 22, 2019,',th:e Clerk presented Resolut10n 19-369 to the Mayor; and 
WHEREAS, section 3 .112 ( t) of the Chatter allows the Mayor to veto the resolution; and, 
WHEREAS> the Mayor issued a veto of Resolution 19--369; and, 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Charter section 3.112(£), the City Council wishes to reconsider Resolution 19-
369 the l'esolution to instruct the City Attorney to amend City of Pontiac Ordinance 2287 and place the 
Cable Division and Appointment of the Cable Director under the legislative branch of City government 
over the Mayor's veto, Five affirmative votes are required by Charter section 3112(£). 

2 



July 29, 2019 Special 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council that the Council hereby adopts 
Resolution \ 9 .. 369 the resolution to instiuot the City Attol':tley to amend City of Pontiac Ordinance 2287 
and place the Cable Division and Appointment of the Cable Director under the legislative branch of City 
government over the Mayor's veto. 

Ayes: Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller and Taylor-Bui-ks 
No: Pietila 
Motion Passed., 

19 .. 384 Resolution to authorize the legal engagcm~~(· 
provide advice and or a legl;ll opinion i-egarding the Ca~! ·· · ~oved by Councilperson Taylor .. 
Butks and ·second by Councilperson Miller. Discussion 9:ltlie,: oor t •;. , ... entire language from the 
cha1te.r under the thkd ''Wheret1s» of the resolution. r-,'')9iscussion1 Co~· ·son Taylor .. Burks 
withdrew her motion and Councilperson Miller wit 'her second. 

. {~,t . ··:\,~\rJ~., 
· 19--384(b) Resolution amended to authorize· ~J~gal engag~inent of thifl.i\w.Jirm of Clnrk Hill 
PLC, to p1·ovide advice and or a legal opinion regai:-ar ./••'') clivision. McN~ib~Y Councilperson 
Tayfor .. Burks and second by Counoilpef~9 Jviiller. ,,- wt(J; 

·,,,~~~-:~,,)Wf f?;I~tt,. '"•'· . . 
WHEREAS, on July 16, 2019, the Pontl~9/Cityl9,9.,µncil passeq).'~~olution l9u369, to instruct the City 
Attorney to amend City of Pontiac Ordimtnqe~i2si anQ. .. pJace the\Ja.hi~ Division and Appointment of the . 
Cable Dfrecto1· under the Iei!~J~_U,.y_e branch of.f~f City":;;~.-.::.-)!, >·hent; JH~,:~~\~ 
wi::EREAS, _on July 24:?

1
.:t.2.1~, )f~?Rt peirdre·1Y~te1· ~i&Phe l'esolution and provided a statement 

which states m part that the 1·esolut1on.1s "null and•: mp )table and unenforceable;,. and, 
.. ,~ ... ) ~ •• •,~ <t,:',...'t.l\\ • , ,- ::,\ ~ .. )t.:uj 

WHEREAS, section 4~2Q~ .. ,of the Poli~(~c City Cht\t "xpressly states, "notwithstanding the above, the 
Council may engage indep)P.:1ent l~e.'it ·co11i1sel o~,1~, temporary basis where the Council is seeking 
enforcement qf aJ:;Qtmcil subpo~na o;{t#Mt;·.§.~ing or hei1)g sued by any City agency or officer} or defending 

.i.~,•,d,l,._,•".,•"••:'-t•~ ~-!•\~\J/'•-..,•.\~.•r,.-::, ,:.~t•*••• .• .t*.,~.•~ \':•.e 't'I. • ~. 

agains~ ~111/~~.Hgi(P.(~JP?';~eding(.i1i61ving thf¥gg~cil,., 1cial dut!es. Furthe!-, the Council may obtain 
the op1m.9p.;:9i advice of 1Jl~¥pendentJ~.S.al counsel ~MN' n. atter pending b~fore 1t.n , 

NOW) ''TREREFORE Bff!ff.:1-RESOLY~D that the :Pontiac City Council hereby authortzes the legal 
engagemeii(Rf-._the law firm of ¢l~rk Hiif~19,., to p1·ovide advice and or a l~gal opinion 1·egarding the Cable 
Division. ·w,;Ii/i}(;;,\ '1'~ih -s·,~;ittr 

Ay~i;~Woodwardi t!~rte1', Miller, Taylor-Burks and Williams 
No: Piit!J~. .{,J,~J 
Ame11dedResolut16n Pnssed. 

No Public Comment . 'i;·;~~;~1!Y 

Council President Kermit Williams Adjoumed meeting at 10:42 a.m. 

3 



September 10, 2019 Approved Minutes 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: Carter 
Resolution Passed. 

Communications 

Community Benefits Ordinance Timeline 

Statement from the Mayor regarding Veto of An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 42; "Community 
Development", to add Atticle VII, entitled "Provisioning Center Community Benefits Agreements,,, 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

l 9w471 Resolution to Override the Mayor's Veto of Ordinance to Amend Chapter 42, 
"Community DevelopmentH, to add Article VII, entitled "Provisioning Center Community Benefits 
Agreements". Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Miller. 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING RESOLUTION 19-436 ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE 
TO AMEND CHAPTER 42 ''COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT" TO ADD ARTICLE VII, 
ENTITLED "PROVISIONING CENTER COMMUNITY BENEFITS AGREEMENTS" 

OVER MAYOR'S VETO 

WHEREAS, on August 27, 2019, the City Council of the City of Pontiac adopted an ordinance to 
amend Chapter 42 "Community DevelopmentH to add Article VII entitled "Provisioning Center 
Community Benefits Agreements ; and, 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Pontiac to adopt an ordinance allow developers of 
provisioning centers to enter into Community Benefits Agreements that identify potential negative aspects 
of such developments and identify propo1iional community benefits to the City of Pontiac to rectify those 
negative aspects.; and, 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac recognizes amenities, benefits or commitments for the following 
purposes as community benefits such as Roads; Infrastructure, Road Repair, Potholes; Road Matching; 
Parks, Park Safety (cameras), Law Enforcement; High School Pool, Hawthorne Park (Water Park), 
Neighborhood Revitalization Plan; Job Training and Employment, Transitional Programs (previously 
incarcerated); Library and Literacy, Health Initiative Education; and Business Development Fund (to 
assist City of Pontiac residents with funding for businesses and with starting and growing businesses); 
and, 
WHEREAS, the pledges of community benefits would be incorporated into Community Benefits 
Agreements that will be used in part to assist the City Clerk with scoring and ranking of provisioning 
center applications pursuant to City Ordinance 2357 (B); and 

10 



September 10, 2019 Approved Minutes 

WHEREAS, 011 September 6, 2019, the Mayor vetoed the ordinance (resolution 19M436); and, 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Pontiac City Charter Provision 3.112 (f), the City Council wishes to 
reconsider resolution 19-436 over the Mayor's veto. Five (5) affomative votes are required by Pontiac 
City Charter Provision 3. l 12(f), 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council that the Council hereby adopts the 
Resolution 19-436 over the Mayor's veto. 

Discussions 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: Pietila 
Resolution Passed. 

Bring back next week the discussion on the Dangerous Animal Ordinance 

Bring back next week the discussion of Filling of the Council Vacancy District 2 

19-472 Suspend the rules to vote on items 11 and 12. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and 
second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes:· Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-473 Resolution to authorize the posting of the vacant Legislative Fiscal Analyst position. 
Moved by Councilperson Wate11nan and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, on June 24, 2019, at a Special Meeting on the Budget, the Pontiac City Council passed 
the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 budget and General Appropriations Act; and, 
WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council included a Legislative Fiscal Analyst position in the budget 
with an annual salaiy of $65,000 and with benefits comparable to other City employees. 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council hereby authorizes the 
immediate posting of the Legislative Fiscal Analyst position. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Watennan, Williams and Carter 
No:None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-474 Resolution to authorize the posting of the vacant Assistant City Clerk position. 
Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, on June 24, 2019, at a Special Meeting on the Budget, the Pontiac City Council passed 
the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 budget and General Appropriations Act; and, 

11 



September 24, 2019 Appl'Oved Minutes 

Ayes: Waterman, Willimns, Outer, Millet·, Pietila and Taylor .. BUl'ks 
No: None 
Motion Cnrried. 

19~482 App,·ove the ngendn ns nmcnded. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by 
Councilperson Taylol' .. Bttrks. 

Ayes: Williams, Cartet\ Miller, Pietila, Toylor-Burks and Watemmn 
No: None 
Motion Cnnied. 

Fornrnl Meeting 

19 .. 433 Approval of meeting minutes for September 17, 2019. Moved by Councilperson Miller 
and second by Councilperson Taylot .. Bmks. 

Ayes: Cartel', Millet\ Pietiln, Taylor~Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No:None 
_Motion Cal'ricd. 

Received Finance Subcomm.ittee Report September 10, 2019 

Discussions 

Communicntiou wfth the Executive Brnnch nud Resolution to authorize Chuk Hill PLC on behnlf 
of the City Council to initinte legal nction ngniust Mayor Wnteminu nnd all otber iudMdunls' 
nccessnry to enforce tho City Council's exp1·ess rights under the City Chn.• tet·, including the l'ight to 
adopt 1·esolutiou~ which hnve the effect of modifying or chnnging City Orclinnuces, nnd to cleclm•e 
the powers nnd responsibilities of the City Council, the Mayo1· mul the Clerk under City Chnrter, 

19-484 
Carter. 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Tay1or~Bmks and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila1 Taylor .. Burks; Wnterman and Williams 
No: None 
l\fotion Cnt•ried. 

19-485 Resolution to nuthol'ize Clnrk Hill PLC to initiate legnl nction 011 behnlf of the City 
Council ngniust Mnyor Wntermnn nnd nll other individuals necessnry to enforce the City Council's 
ex1wess rights under the City Chntter, including the right to ndopt resolutions which have the effect 
of modifying or cbnnging City Orclinnnces, and to declare the powers nnd responsibilities of the 
City Council, the mnyor nucl the Clerk under City Charter, (Agendn AddMOn) Moved by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks nnd second by Councilperson Carter. 

2 



September 24, 2019 Approved Minutes 

\ 

WHEREAS, on or around July 16, 2019} the Pontiac City Council passed Resolution 19M369 and which 
instructed the Pont inc City Attorney to drnft an amendment to City of Pontiac ordhmnce 2287 to place the 
Cable &vision and appointment of the Cnble Dil'ecto1· under the legislative branch of City government; 
thereby, undct· the direct supervision of the City Council; and, 
\VHEREAS, the City Attorney advised the Mayor of the City of Pontiac thnt Resolution 19-369 was 
"improper,, nnd on or around July 22, 2019 the Mayor issued a veto; and> 
WHEREAS, on or around July 29, 2019, the City Council overrode the Mayor's veto ofResolution 19 .. 
369 by a vote of five to one; and, 
WHEREAS, since July 29, 2019 the City Attorney has refused to drnft an amended ordinance and has 
not presented a draft amended ol'dimmce to the City Council for consideration; and, 
WHEREAS, on September 19, 2019 the Mayor and the City Attorney have stated to a member of the 
City Council that resolutiqns present"ed and passed by the City Cotmcil are merely advisory and do no\ 
need to be followed by the Mayor or the City Attorney; andi 
WHEREAS, the City Council has the authority under the City Chaiter and state law to revise or modify 
any ot'der implemented by an Emet·gency Managet, including EM 8"280. Resolution 19 .. 369 was a proper 
exercise of that authority. The City Attomey's opinion that it is improper under the City Chmiel' and 
State law to make the changes to the applicable City ordimmces is without merit; and, 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is in the best interest of the City of Pontiac and the citizens, to 
amend the City of Pontiac otdinance to modify the organizational structure of the cable division; and, 
WHEREAS, City of Pontiac Ordinance No. 2357(B) enacted the ''City of PonHac Medical Mal'ihuana 
Facilities Ordinance/' and there is cunently a moratorium on the application process based largely on the 
ivfayor)s interpretation of the City Clet'k,s powel's and responsibilities under Ordinance No. 2357(B); and, 
·wHEREAS, during the lasl several City Council meetings there hns been debate nnd discussion 
regarding the powers and responsibilities of City Council, the Mayor, the City Attornoyi and the City 
Cle1·k under the City Chartet· regarding the above-referenced issues; and. 
WHEREAS, the City Council is'regrettably left with no option but litigation in order to en.force 
Resolution 19 .. 369, to confirm and declare the powers and responsibilities unde1· the City Cha11er ns 
described above, and to seek a declaration that the Mayor's and the City Attorney's l'ecent conduct is 
unlawful under Michigan law, including a violation ofMCL 750.478; and. 
NO\V, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Pontiac City Council that pursuant to Section 4.204 
of the City Charter, the City Council's attomeys, Clark Hill PLC, are authorized and directed to initiate 
legal action on behalf of the City Council ngniust Maym· Watemum and all other individuals necessary to 
enforce the City Council is express rights under the City Chmter, including the right to adopt resolutions 
which have the eftect of modifying or changing City Ordinances, and to declare the powers and 
responsibilities of the City Council, the Mayor and the Clerk under City Charter, 

Ayes: Miller, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Carter 
No: Pietila 
Resolution Pnssed. 

Adoption of nn OrcUnnnce to nmend Chapter 42, "Couuunuity DeveJ01m1eut", to ndd Article Vll, 
entitled "community Benefit Ag1·eementsH (This ordiunnce wns drnfted by the City Attomey.) 

3 



September 24, 2019 Approved Minutes 

WHEREAS, on or nround July 16, 2019> the Pontiac City Council passed Resolution 19 .. 369 and which 
instructed the Pontiac City Attorney to th'nft an amendment to City of Pontiac ordinance 2287 to place the 
Cable division and appointment of the Cable Director under the legislative branch of City govemment; 
thereby, under the direct snpe1·vision of the City Council; and, 
WHEREAS, the City Attorney advised the Mayor of the City of Pontiac that Resolution 19-369 was 
"improper0 and on or around July 22, 2019 the Mayor issued a veto; and, 
WHEREAS, on or arnund July 291 2019. the City Council ovel'l'ode the Mayor's veto ofResolution 19~ 
369 by a vote of five to one; and, 
WHEREAS, since July 29, 2019 the City Attorney has refused to draft an Amended ordinance and has 
not presented n draft amended ordinance to the City Council for consideration; and, 
WHEREAS, on September 19> 2019 the Mayor and the City Attorney have stated to a member of the 
City Council that resolutiqns presented and passed by the City Council iwe merely advisory cmd do nol 
need to be followed by the Mayor or the City Attomey; and, 
WHEREAS, the City Council has the authority under the City Chatter and state law to revise or modify 
any order implemented by An Emergency Manager, including EM S-280. Resolution } 9 .. 369 was a proper 
exercise of that authority, The City Attorney's opinion that it is improper under the City Cha11e1· and . 
State law to make the changes to the applicable City ordinances is without merit; and, 
WHEREAS> the City Council believes it is in the best interest of the City of Pontiac and the citizens, to 
amend the City of Pontiac ordinance to modify the organizational structm·e of the cable division; and, 
WHEREAS, City of Pontiac Ordinance No. 2357(8) enacted the "City of Pontiac Medical Marihuann 
Facilities Ordinance," and there is curl'ently a moratorium on the application ptocess based largely on the 
Mayor•s interptetation of the City Clerk's powers and responsibilities undel' Ordinance No. 2357(B); and, 
WHEREAS~ during the last severnl City Council meetings there has been debute and discussion 
regarding the powers and responsibilities of City Council, the Mayor, the City Attomcy, and the City 
Clerk under the City Charter regarding the above-refo1•enced issues; and, 
WHEREAS, the City Council is.regrettably left with no option but litigation in order to enforce 
Resolution 19-369, to confirm and declal'e the powel's and responsibilities under the City Charier ns 
described above, and to seek a declaration that the Mayor's and the City Attomeis recent conduct is 
unlawfol under Michigan law, including a violation ofMCL 750.478; and. 
NOWt THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Pontiac City Council that pmsunnt to Section 4.204 
of the City Chartet\ the City Council's attorneys, Clark Hill PLC~ are authorized and directed to initiate 
legal action on behalf of the City Council ngninst Mayor Wntemum and all other individuals necessai-y to 
enforce the City CounoiPs exp1·ess rights under the City Cluutet\ including the dght to ndopt resolutions 
which have the eftect of modifying or changing City Ordinnnces, and to dec1nl'e the powers and 
responsibilities of the City Council, the May01· and lhe Clerk under City Chartel'. 

Ayes: Miller, Taylol'-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Carter 
No: Pietila 
Rcsohttion Pnsscd. 

Adoption of on OrcUnnuce to omend Clrnptcr 42, HCommunity Development", to odd Article Vll, 
entitled "community Benefit Agreements•' (This ordiunnce wns drnfted by the City Attol'ney.) 

3 



September 24, 2019 Approved Minutes 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman> Williams, Carter and Mille1· 
No: None · 
:Motion Cnrricd. 
Councilwoman Pietila was absent dul'ing the vole. 

19-487 Adoption of nu Ordiunnce to mneud Chnpter 42, "Community DevelopmeutH, to 
ndcl Article VII, entitled "Community Benefit Agreements,,, (Agenda Add-Ou) Council President 
Williams pmposed several amendments to the ol'dirnmce that was drafted by the City Attorney. The 
Hdoption of the ordinance with amendments Moved by CO\mcilperson THylorMBurks and second by 
Councilperson Ca1iet, 

Ayes: Taylor .. Bul'ks, Waterman, Williams, Carte,·, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Otdinnnce Pnssed. 

Please see "Attnchmeut A for Ordiunnce with nmcudments" nfter the minutes, 

Specinl F1•esentntions (Presentntion nrc limited to 5 minutes.) 

Phoenix Center Settlement Agl'eement 
Pl'csentntion Presenters: Mayol' Watenuan, City Attorney Anthony Chubb and Vince DeLeonardis, 
President, AUCH Construction 

City of Pontiac Retil'ed Employees Association (CPREA) - Retiree Health Care Lawsuit Settlement 
Action Plan 
Presentation Presenters: Mayol' Watermnn, Samantha Kopacz, Miller Canfield and City Atto111ey Rich 
Warren 

Rep011 Regnrding Check Register, New Hires nnd Credit Cnrd 
P1·esentntion Presenter: Nfoyor Watennatl 

Report-Jobs' Pipeline/Workforce Development Report - Silvcrdome Site Development Amnzon 
Presentation Pl'esenter: Mayor Watet·man 

Councilwoman Mary Pietila left the meeting. 

19-488 
Watenrnm. 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilpe1·son Taylm·~Burks and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller nnd Taylor-Burks 

4 



July 28, 2020 Approved Minutes 

Ayes: Williams) Carter, Miller, Pietila) Slu·amski and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Public Comment 
Six (6) individuals submitted a public comment read by the City Clerk 

Special Presentation 
Update: Department of Public Works (DPW) Plan for Increased Park Maintenance and Clean-up to 
accommodate summer usage. 
Presentation Presenter: Dan Ringo, Interim DPW Director 

Suspend the Rules 
20-359 Motion to Suspend the Rules to vote. Moved by Councilperson Taylor--Burks and 
second by Councilperson Miller. 

Resolution 
City Council 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramski and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

20-360 Resolution that request the Mayor to provide to the City Council, a list of all 
outstanding bills and or invoices that are ninety (90) days old or older~ with explanations as to why 
payments have not been made to be included in the Thursday, August 6, 2020 Council Agenda. 
Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

WHEREAS, the City Council has been inf01med by the Parliamentarian, Eleanor Siewe1t that she has 
outstanding invoices that date back to the beginning of the New Year; and, 
WHEREAS, Clark Hill PLC despite being told they were going to receive payment by the City Attorney 
Anthony Chubb, also has outstanding invoices that date back to October of 2019; and, 
WHEREAS, the outstanding invoices for both the Parliamentarian and Clark Hill, total close to Sixty 
Thousand ($60,000.00) Dollars; and, 
WHEREAS, the Council passed a resolution on June 17, 2020 to engage the Bonadio Group, a certified 
public accounting finn to perfo1m a forensic audit and agreed to submit a retainer of Ten Thousand 
($10,000.00) Dollars; and, 
WHEREAS, despite the Council having allocated the necessa1y funds in last year's budget and in this 
current fiscal year's budget, the Executive has not paid any of Council's contractors; and, 
WHEREAS, this creates some serious concem and raises several questions including, how many other 
contractors have not been paid? How many other bills are outstanding and is the Executive not paying bills 
in hopes of reflecting an inaccurate fund balance? 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council hereby requests that 
the Executive provide to the City Council, a list of all outstanding bills and or invoices that are ninety 

2 



July 28, 2020 Approved Minutes 

(90) days old and older, with explanations as to why payments have not been made, all to be included in 
the Thursday, August 6, 2020 Council Agenda. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks and Williams 
No: None 
Resolution passed. 

Suspend the Rules 
20-361 Motion to Suspend the Rules to vote. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and 
second by Councilperson Shramski. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Shramsld, Taylor-Burks, Williams and Carter 
No: None 

Resolution 
City Council 

Motion Carried. 

20-362 Resolution for Charles Harold Moody. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, It is the sense of this legislative body to pay proper tribute to individuals of remarkable 
character and whose lives have been dedicated to uplifting, inspiring and empowering the conununity; and; 
WHEREAS, it is feelings of the deepest regret that the Pontiac City Council mourns the passing of 
Charles Harold Moody, a giving and loyal member of this community; and, 
WHEREAS, Charles Harold Moody was born on March 4, 1946 in Mobile> Alabama to the late George 
Moody and Minnie-Bell Allen Moody; and, 
WHEREAS, Charles Harold Moody in his eady years was reared in the Mobile, Alabama school system 
where he attended Josephine Allen Eleme11ta1y School and Central High School, later attended Bishop State 
Community College in 1966 and earned a Bachelor's Degree in Education in 1968 from Alabama State 
University; and, 
WHEREAS, Charles Harold Moody, a recipient of the prestigious Kellogg Foundation Scholarship and 
destined for success, moved to Michigan where he was awarded a Master's in Education Administration 
from Oakland University in Rochester Hills, Michigan in 1980; and, 
WHEREAS, Charles Harold Moody had a unwavering passion for the sciences and mechanics which 
propelled him to become a Certified Driver Education Instructor at Wayne State University in 1987; and, 
WHEREAS, Charles Harold Moody continued to excel in academics and in 1992, graduated from 
Michigan State University with a unique, honor and designation, a Master's + 30 in School Administration 
which symbolized the attainment of 30 hours of university credit beyond the first Master's Degree; and, 
WHEREAS, Charles Harold Moody embarked on an extraordinary 40 year career as an educator in 
Pontiac, Michigan which started with his joining the Pontiac School District in 1968 where he taught at 
Bethune Elementary School and ended with his retirement as a Principal from Whitmer Human Resources 
Center in 2008; and, 
WHEREAS, Charles Harold Moody was a phenomenal educator and trail blazer who had the privilege, of 
serving as a Title 1 Administrator, a District Science Consultant, a Regional Coordinator for the Hands on 

3 



January 21, 2020 Approved Minutes Co11'ected 

20w25 Approvnl of Amended Agenda. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Wate1man) G, Williams, K. Williams} Carter, Miller, Pietila und Taylor-Burks 
No:None · · 
Motion Carded. 

Approval of the Minutes 
20-26 Approve meeting minutes for January 14, 2020. Moved by Councilperson Waterman 
and second by Councilperson Pietila . 

. Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila1 Taylor .. Burks and Watel'man 
No: None 

Resolutions 

Mnyor's Office 

Motion Carried. 

20-27. Resolution to nppoint Mr. Dan Ringo as the Director of Public \Vorks for the City of 
Pontfoc. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Whereas, the Mayor> in accordance with Article IV, Chapter 1, Section 4.106 appoints Dan Ringo as 
DPW Dfrector for the Department of Public Works; and, . 
Whereas, in accordance with Aiticle IV, Chapter 1) Section 4.106 such appointment is subject to approval 
by Council; and 
Whereas> Dan Ringo has the credentiols, expedence, and professionalism necessary to be the DPW 
D free tor; and 
Whereas, Dan Ringo has served as Depu1y Director of Public Works since June 3~ 2019; 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved in acco1·dance with appo1ntment procedures provided by law and the City 
Charter, Dan Ringo is formally appointed, effective inunediately, as Directol' of Public Worker for the 
City of Pontiac. · · 

:Planning 

Ayes: Pietila and Waterman 
No: IC. Williams, Caiter, Miller, Taylor-Burks and G, Williams 
Resolution Failed. 

20-28 Resolution to approve the Specia1ly Designed Distdbutor (SDD) Chlss C 'Bistro, 
License 011 behalf of the petitioner Fillmo1·e 13 Brewery and that notice of approval be sent to the 
Michignn Liquor Control Commission for consideration. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and 
second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac City C011ncil chooses to engage in PA 58, 1998) MCL 436.152la(1)(b) for 
the issuance of New On-Premises Development District License and establishment of Redevelopment 

2 

• .. .t 



July 6, 2021 Approved Minutes 

3. Sidewalks - $125,000: to repair sidewalks throughout the City of Pontiac as outlined in Sidewalk 
Repair Area Map. 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved> that the Pontiac City Council approve the reprogramming of HOME 
Consortium funds for CDBG projects for Year 2020 for the proposed recommended projects for the 
$250,000 amount previously allocated for Carriage Circle which was paid by Oakland County out of the 
Oakland County HOME Cons01tium fund. 

Resolution 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks~ Waterman, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Shramski 
No: None 
Abstain: Williams 
Amendment Resolution Passed 

Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center (PYREC) 
21 "204 Emergency resolution to Mitigate Expected Damages through an Extension of the 
Lease Agreement for 825 Gold Drive. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Waterman. 

Whereas, the City Council has elected to reject the option to purchase the prope1iy at 825 Golf Dr. 
pursuant to the lease agreement and likewise rejected the owners offer to continue the lease on either a 
month to month ot three year basis; and 
Whereas, the City must vacate the entire premises by June 30, 2021 of be considered a hold over tenant 
which will cause the city to be charged additional rent and damages; and 
Whereas, the property owner is in agreement to grant a three month extension on the lease agreement to 
continue programming, manage a schedule to close the center, and mitigate additional damages. 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby Authorize the Mayor to 
review and execute a three (3) month extension to the Lease Agreement for 825 Golf Drive to allow for 
the City to timely re-program scheduled youth activity, detennine a place and process for vacating the 
premises, and to avoid any extended damages during the extension. 

Ayes: None 
No: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Shramski and Taylor-Burks 
Resolution Failed 
Councilwoman Pietila was absent during the vote 

Mayoral Monthly Report 
Personnel Monthly StaffRep01i (No report was submitted.) 
Monthly Check Register (Per the Administration, the check registers are posted on the city's website 
http://pontiac.mi.us/departments/finance/finacialreports.php#revizedocumentcenterrz3702 
City Credit Card Statement (Per the Administration, the credit card statement was given directly to 
Council Members by the Finance Director.) 

J>ublic Comment 
Three (3) individuals addressed the body during public comment 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 
Mayor Wate1man, Interim Clerk Doyle, Pro-Tem Randy Caiier, Councilwoman Miller, Councilwoman 
Pietila, Councilwoman Shramski, Councilwoman Taylor-Burks, Councilwoman Waterman and President 
Williams made closing comments. 

5 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

EMERGENCY RESOLUTION TO MITIGATE DAMAGE AND EXTEND LEASE 
AGREEMENT FOR 825 GOLF DRIVE 

AT A REGULAR meeting of the Pontiac City Council of the City of Pontiac, Michigan, held 
at Pontiac City Hall on __________ , 2021, the following resolution was offered by 
__________ and supported by ________ _ 

Whereas, the City Council has elected to reject the option to purchase the property at 825 Golf Dr 
pursuant to the lease agreement and likewise rejected the owners offer to continue the lease on either 
a month to month or tlrree year basis; and 

Whereas, the City must vacate the entire premises by June 30, 2021 ofbe considered a hold over 
tenant which will cause the city to be charged additional rent and damages; and 

Whereas, the property owner is in agreement to grant a three month extension on the lease 
agreement to continue programming, manage a schedule to close the center, and mitigate additional 
damages. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby Authorize the Mayor to 
review and execute a three (3) month extension to the Lease Agreement for 825 Golf Drive to allow for the 
City to timely re-program scheduled youth activity, determine a place and process for vacating the premises, 
and to avoid any extended damages during the extension. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL> Pontiac, Michigan, this day of 
.....,.__ _______ ) 202. 

AYES: ~---~------

NAYS: ---------~-

I> Garland Doyle, Interim Clerk of the City of Pontiac, hereby ce1tify that the above Resolution is a true copy and 
accurate copy ofthe Resolution passed by the City Council.ofthe City of Pontiac on ________ , 2021. 

GARLAND DOYLE, City Clerk 

D~~ W21 ________ _, 



#9 
RESOLUTION 



Resolution of the Pontiac City Council 

Resolution to Set Special Election for May 3, 2022 

Whereas, Proposal A stated the question "Shall the 1982 Charter for the City of Pontiac be revised by a 
Charter Commission to be selected by the electorate?"; and, 

Whereas, Pontiac voters approved Proposal A on August 3, 2021; and, 

Whereas, Michigan Public Act 279 of 1909 117.18 Incorporation; revision of charter, procedure, 
commission, advisory vote; incorporation of provision in original charter granted by legislature states "No 
city officer or employee, whether elected or appointed, shall be eligible to a place on the commission. The 
names of all candidates so nominated shall be placed upon a separate ballot at the election designated to 
be held for the election of a charter commission without their party affiliations designated; the 9 
candidates having the greatest number of votes shall be declared elected; and, 

Whereas, the Pontiac City Council sets a Special Election on May 3, 2022 for the purposes of electing 
charter commissioners. 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council, schedules a special election for May 3, 
2022 for the election of a charter commission 



Qualifications to run for office: 

Officer to be elected: 

Method of filing: 

Signature requirement: 

Filing deadline: 

Withdrawal deadline: 

Date of the Election: 

Compensation: 

The City of Pontiac 
Charter Commission Information Sheet 

Citizen of the United States, a current resident of Pontiac and must 
remain a resident throughout the tenure in elected office. 

No city officer or employee, whether elected or appointed, shall be 
eligible to be on the commission. 

Nine (9) Members. The nine candidates having the greatest number of 

votes shall be declared elected. 

**Reference MCL 117.18 

Non-Partisan Nominating Petitions. 

Minimum of 146 and maximum of 292 registered voter signatures 

(which is equivalent to 2% - 4% of the 7285 voter turnout for 

November 2, 2021 Mayoral election). 

**Reference MCL 117.18 

January 18, 2022 at 4 PM. Must file an Affidavit of Identity. 

**Reference MCL 168.322 

January 21, 2022 at 4 PM. Withdrawals must be submitted in writing. 

**Reference MCL 168.322a 

May 3, 2022. 

There is no compensation for candidates of this elected office. 

Created 12-10-21 



#10 
RESOLUTION 



Resolution of the Pontiac City Council 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the FY 2021-2022 budget on June 24, 
2021;and 

Whereas, the City Clerk is requesting $31,200 in funds to be transferred from the 
general fund balance GL Account 101-000-390.000 to the following accounts 101-191-
702.004 overtime wages $1,200; 101-191-740.000 operating supplies $10,000; 101-
191-809.000 services-elections $10,000; 101-215-809.002 Charter Commission; and 

Whereas, these transfers are necessary to pay for the additional cost that will be 
incurred for the Special Election on May 3, 2022 and to support the Charter 
Commission and 

Whereas, section 5.106 of the Charter states "after adoption of the appropriations 
ordinance, and upon at least one week's notice in a newspaper of general circulation in 
the City, the Council by a resolution of five members, may amend such ordinance to 
authorize the transfer of an unused balance appropriated for one purpose to another 
purpose, or to appropriate available revenues not previously appropriated."; and 

Now therefore, be it resolved that the City Council authorizes the City Clerk to post the 
proposed budget amendment in the Oakland Press. 



#11 
RESOLUTION 



Resolution of the Pontiac City Council 

Resolution to Change the Date of the City Council Meeting on December 30, 2021 at 12:00 pm. to 
December 28, 2021 at 12:00 p.m. 

Whereas, the Pontiac City Council scheduled a meeting on Thursday, December 30, 2021 at 12:00 p.m. in 
the City Council Chambers. 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council reschedules its meeting set for December 
30, 2021 at 12:00 p.m. to December 28, 2021 at 12:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers. 



 

#11b 

RESOLUTION 



Executive Branch   
 

TO:             Honorable City Council President and City Council Members 
 

FROM:        Linnette Phillips, Director, Economic Development 

 

THROUGH:  Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

 
DATE:  December 14, 2021 
 
RE:        Resolution to Approve CDBG Program Year 2022 Projects  
________________________________________________________________ 

Overview 

The City of Pontiac’s application deadline for the Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2022 is due for submission to Oakland 
County on December 17, 2021, no later than 5:00 pm EST. A total allocation of 
$798,883 is projected for the CDBG Program Year 2022.  The City of Pontiac 
(COP) is a sub-recipient to Oakland County to administer the program.  
Contractors submit invoices to the COP who processes for the County to 
reimburse and directly pay the contractor. Program Year 2022 funds are allocated 
for calendar year 2023 spending. 

 

Prior to the City Council voting to approve the application, a public hearing will 
need to be held at the meeting on December 14, 2021.  The notice for the public 
hearing should be posed by Dec. 3, 2021.  We are required to inform the public at 
least 10 days prior to the public hearing.   

 

After the Public Hearing, we are requesting approval of the submission of CDBG 
Application for Program Year 2022 projects approved by City Council. 

 

 

Proposed Projects Considered for Recommendation for CDBG PY2022 

 

The Honorable City Council proposed all CDBG funds to repair Sidewalks 
throughout the City of Pontiac:    

 

Sidewalks for $798,883:  Funds to repair sidewalks throughout the City of 
Pontiac.  Priority for sidewalk repair is based on complaint areas in 
neighborhoods, and the amount of repairs needed.  DPW have a generated 
complaint referred to for repairs.  See map attached 
 

 

 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 



 
 

CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE SUBMSISSION OF COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) FOR  
PROGAM YEAR 2022 RECOMMENDED PROJECTS  

 
 
Whereas, the City of Pontiac is submitting an application for the Community Development 
Block Grant; and 
 
Whereas, the grant application will be submitted on December 17, 2021 to Oakland 
County for Program Year 2022 projects; and 
 
Whereas, a Public Hearing is required with a minimum 10 notice, published by December 
3, 2021 to the public; and  
 
Whereas, we are requesting to hold the Public Hearing on December 14, 2021 at 6:00; 
and  
 
Whereas, the following project is proposed for consideration:   
 

Sidewalks for $798,883. Funds to repair sidewalks throughout the City of 
Pontiac. 

 
 

 Now Therefore be it Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council approve submission of the 
Community Development Block Grant Application for Program Year 2022 for proposed 
projects approved by the honorable City Council  on December 14, 2021.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

          
 

CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  

 
RECOMMENDING PROGRAM YEAR 2022 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

BLOCK GRANS (CDBG)   

 
 
NOTICE IS HEARBY GIVEN that the City of Pontiac will hold a public hearing to 
recommend Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) projects for Program 
Year 2022.  The recommendation is the entire allocated amount of $798,883 be 
appropriated for Sidewalks.   
 
Public Comment For individuals who desire to make a public comment, please 
submit your name and comment in writing to publiccomments@pontiac.mi.us by 
5:00 PM, December 13, 2021. Additionally, you may submit your public comment 
in writing directly to the Office of the Interim City Clerk gdoyle@pontiac.mi.us 
  
The hearing will be held on Tuesday, December 14, 2021 at 6:00 pm at the 
City of Pontiac City Council Chambers at Pontiac City Hall, 47450 
Woodward Avenue, 2nd Floor in Pontiac, Michigan.  
 

mailto:publiccomments@pontiac.mi.us
mailto:gdoyle@pontiac.mi.us


#12 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President, and City Council Members 

Abdul H Siddiqui, PE, City Engineer 

December 14, 2021 

MOOT Annual Permit Performance Resolution 

Every year, the Department of Public Works (DPW) applies for an annual permit from the 
Michigan Department of Transportation (MOOT) to perform routine and emergency 
maintenance on City owned utilities such as street lighting in MOOT right of way in the City. 

The attached Performance Resolution is required by MOOT as a condition for issuing this 
permit as well as any other permit to any municipality. This year, the Performance 
Resolution text has been revised by MOOT and therefore they are requiring a new approval 
from the City Council. 

DPW has reviewed the attached Performance Resolution and recommends that City 
Council vote to approve it. 

AHS 

attachments 



Michigan Department 
of Transportation 

22078 (05/21) PERFORMANCE RESOLUTION FOR 
MUNICIPALITIES 

Page 1 of 2 

This Performance Resolution (Resolution)is required by the Michigan Department of Transportation for 
purposes of issuing to a Municipality an "Individual Permit for Use of State Highway Right of Way", and/or 
an "Annual Application and Permit for Miscellaneous Operations within State Highway Right of Way". 

RESOLVED WHEREAS, the ____________ Ci_ty_o_f_P_on_t_ia_c __________ _ 
(County, City, Village, Township, etc.) 

hereinafter referred to as the "MUNICIPALITY," periodically applies to the Michigan Department of 
Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT," for permits, referred to as "PERMIT," to 
construct, operate, use and/or maintain utilities or other facilities, or to conduct other activities, on, over, and 
under State Highway Right of Way at various locations within and adjacent to its corporate limits; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the DEPARTMENT granting such PERMIT, the MUNICIPALITY 
agrees that: 

1. Each party to this Resolution shall remain responsible for any claims arising out of their own acts and/or 
omissions during the performance of this Resolution, as provided by law. This Resolution is not 
intended to increase either party's liability for, or immunity from, tort claims, nor shall it be interpreted, 
as giving either party hereto a right of indemnification, either by Agreement or at law, for claims arising 
out of the performance of this Agreement. 

2. If any of the work performed for the MUNICIPALITY is performed by a contractor, the MUNICIPALITY shall 
require its contractor to hold harmless, indemnify and defend in litigation, the State of Michigan, the 
DEPARTMENT and their agents and employee's, against any claims for damages to public or private 
property and for injuries to person arising out of the performance of the work, except for claims that result 
from the sole negligence or willful acts of the DEPARTMENT, until the contractor achieves final acceptance 
of the MUNICIPALITY Failure of the MUNICIPALITY to require its contractor to indemnify the 
DEPARTMENT, as set forth above, shall be considered a breach of its duties to the DEPARTMENT. 

3. Any work performed for the MUNICIPALITY by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as a contractor 
for the MUNICIPALITY and not as a contractor or agent of the DEPARTMENT. The DEPARTMENT shall 
not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by vendors and contractors of the MUNICIPALITY, or their 
subcontractors or any other person not a party to the PERMIT without the DEPARTMENT'S specific prior 
written consent and notwithstanding the issuance of the PERMIT. Any claims by any contractor or 
subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the MUNICIPALITY. 

4. The MUNICIPALITY shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or indirectly out 
of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the PERMIT which results in claims being asserted 
against or judgment being imposed against the State of Michigan, the Michigan Transportation Commission, 
the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents and employees thereof and those contracting governmental 
bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all officers, agents, and employees 
thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event that the same occurs, for the purposes of the 
PERMIT, it will be considered as a breach of the PERMIT thereby giving the State of Michigan, the 
DEPARTMENT, and/or the Michigan Transportation Commission a right to seek and obtain any necessary 
relief or remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money damages. 

5. The MUNICIPALITY will, by its own volition and/or request by the DEPARTMENT, promptly restore and/or 
correct physical or operating damages to any State Highway Right of Way resulting from the 
installation construction, operation and/or maintenance of the MUNICIPALITY'S facilities according to a 
PERMIT issued by the DEPARTMENT. 



MOOT 2207B (05/21) Page 2 of 2 

6. With respect to any activities authorized by a PERMIT, when the MUNICIPALITY requires insurance on 
its own or its contractor's behalf it shall also require that such policy include as named insured the State 
of Michigan, the Transportation Commission, the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents, and employees 
thereof and those governmental bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all 
officers, agents, and employees thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract. 

7. The incorporation by the DEPARTMENT of this Resolution as part of a PERMIT does not prevent the 
DEPARTMENT from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance of a 
PERMIT. 

8. This Resolution shall continue in force from this date until cancelled by the MUNICIPALITY or the 
DEPARTMENT with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice provided to the other party. It 
will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the MUNICIPALITY with regard to any PERMIT which has 
already been issued or activity which has already been undertaken. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following position(s) are authorized to apply to the DEPARTMENT for 
the necessary permit to work within State Highway Right of Way on behalf of the MUNICIPALITY. 

Title and/or Name: 

Director of the Department of Public Works 

Deputy Director of the Department of Public Works 

City Engineer 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by 

the City Council -------------------------------------
(Name of Board, etc.) 

of the City of Pontiac of Oakland County --------------------- --------------
(Name of MUNICIPALITY) (County) 

at a _________________________ meeting held on the ___ day 

of _________ A.D. _____ _ 

Signed 

Title 

Print Signed Name 



#13 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PON IAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams and City Council 

FROM: Darin Carrington, Finance Director 

DATE: December 10, 2021 

RE: Resolution to approve extend the agreement on a month-to-month basis 
beginning January 1, 2022. 

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor entered into an Agreement on the 16th day of 
February, 2011; and, 

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor have amended the Agreement via Amendments A 
through J, most recently in December 2020; and, 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has demonstrated its ability to faithfully execute the terms of 
the Agreement; and, 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes the importance of maintaining uninterrupted Building 
Safety services for residents and businesses; and, 

WHEREAS, the City currently does not have staff to perform these services without 
significant interruption and disruption for the citizens of Pontiac; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City and the Contractor to extend the current 
agreement to insure uninterrupted services to the Citizens of Pontiac; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Contractor agree to extend the Agreement, for the 
following professional services and conditions: 

1. Extend the contract on a month-to-month basis until December 31, 2022 

2. Amend Section 3 .2.1 to read as follows as follows: 

3. Compensation. Contractor shall receive from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 
2022, a monthly payment from the City in the amount of $146,670. 



October 8, 2021 

Chip Smith 
Wade Trim Associates 
500 Griswold 
Detroit, Ml 48226 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

Re: City of Pontiac/Wade Trim Associates 

Dear Chip: 

As you know, our records indicate that the contract between the City of Pontiac and Wade Trim 
Associates ts set to expire on December 31, 2021. We are appreciative of the service that Wade 
Trim Associates has provided to the citizen:;; of Pontiac during this time. 

With the upcoming expiration date, we would like to have discussions regarding the renewal of 
this agreement. Such discussions would include a review of the services that have been provided 
and projected costs. · 

Felicia Rutledge will reach out to you shortly to arrange some mutually agreeable dates. At that 
time, please indicate who your contact and representative wlll be for said discussions. 

Sincerely, 

Deirdre Waterman, Mayor 
City of Pontiac 

47450 Woodward Avenue• Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Direct: (248) 758-3181 • Appointments: (248) 758-3326 • Fax: (248) 758-3292 

E-mail: DWaterman@pontiac.mi.us • www.pontiac.mi.us 
https://www.facebook.com/pontiacmayor/ 



Wade Trim Contract- Executive Summary (November 2021} 

Background: 
This Agreement is for the Contractor to operate and maintain the City's Building and Safety 
Department. This Agreement was initially entered into in February 2011. It has been extended 
several times through various amendments since that time. The most recent Amendment J 
went into effect on January 1, 2021. 

Scope of Work: 
Contractor provides all services and employees for the City's Building and Safety Department 

Term: 
Current term of this Agreement runs from January 1, 2021- December 31, 2021. This term may 
be extended on a month-to-month basis through December 31, 2022. Additionally, the 
Agreement can be terminated after the initial term with 90 day notice by either party. 

Compensation: ·-" · 
Under this Agreement, the City pays the Contractor at a monthly rate of $143,795. This rate is 
in effect until December 31, 2021. Beginning January 1, 2022, this rate increases 2% to a 
monthly rate of $146,670. 

Contact: 
Wade Trim: Chip Smith 
City of Pontiac: Mayor's Office, Finance Department 



Contract 
Distribution 
Sheet 

Contract Name: Wade Trim -Addendum J 

Brief Overview: building safety services 

Approved by Council: 12/22/2020 
;:,':_··,;, ·:·\t ::.::- t ••.•·.• '.·, ..... _. '.- •• : :t ·.,;._ : __ ·.:-.::.~::.:• ... :-.. :.-.: ·-._:_::::·~·:.·-~··.··.:\ 

Sl~ri~db\;';·:,.::.;:·,\·.' :, ·.:::,::-: ':)::?·-· __ :·::"_/::i<~i~~~;~-;~;·•.·::··. .. 
Deirdre Waterman -
Mayor 

Charles Smith - Wade Trim 
Fully Executed <:opy of .': Docu·~·e·nt S~nt·t~: . ·.' .... 
Mike WIison -·Building 
Dept. 
Adrienne Zeigler -
Purchasing Agent 
SIGNED ORIGINAL · :. '. · : 

\•··· '•\•,·••,······ ·. '.. :.: 

Document Sent to: 
Garland Doyle -
City Clerk 
Date entered Into . : ' 

·. ···. ', ·. \ laserFiche 

:\·~:.··• .. :·:·:·.::.:~--::::_,;:,-_·.:\/ :··: '•.·: :· · .. :·:::: 
·. •, . ·.: . <signature ' . .':.'::· :: '.'::: :·.::::. 

·:._\·.:_:_·_.··.\·,.·.•.: .. :,_'-:->."<.-:.·.·.~-.:.:· .. ·.· -.~ ·:.-:· .· · .. , ·: ·.·, :·. 
Signature 

-.... ' ., ' :. · .. 
'· ..... . 

: ' • : :•., .': ; • • \ • • • • '• • l' .'' • •. :, ."• • ~ •: '• 

. ·.· .. -~ ~-/-_':.:.~~-:._·.: . .-.-._ .• .. • . .-: '·.-. . :·•, 
. , ... : .,. ·:.·· . .<<·oate: 

· .. •. ·: ; ·. ... . . '·. ~ : _ _.._. ·. . ' ...... '~ .. ·. : . ': ·' · .. ·,. \ . : 
··-.. :•·:::·: ,: : ' .. -.:·.·· : .. , ··: ;.:_··.:.= 

Date: · 

. . . . . ' ~ ' ' : : . \ • .. ·. . : ··· ... :·· 
... : : ; : ·- ' ... ', 

'-.··• · Date: 



City of Pontiac 
Professional Services Agreement 

Addendum J 
Amendments to a Professional Services Agreement between 

the City of Pontiac and Wade Trim Associates, Inc. 

December 22, 2020 

The following recitals and representations are entered Into this __ day of December, 2020, by 
and between the City of Pontiac, a municipal corporation, whose address Is 47450 Woodward 
Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan 48342, (City), and Wade Trim Associates, Inc., a Michigan 
corporation, licensed to do business In the State of Michigan, whose address Is 500 Griswold 
Avenue, Suite 2500, Detroit, Michigan 48226, (Contractor), and are Intended to amend an 
Agreement for Professional Setvices (Agreement) originally executed by the City and Contractor 
on February 16, 2011. 

Recitals and Representations 

WHEREAS, the City and Contrnctm· entei·ed into an Agreement on the 16th day of Febrnat·y~ 
2011; and, 

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor have amended the Agt·eement via Amendments A tlwough 
l, most 1·ecently in December 2018; and, 

WHEREAS, the Contrnctor has demonstrnted its ability to faithfully exec\lte the terms of the 
Agreement; and, 

WHEREAS, the City l'ecognizes the importance of maintaining tminte1·1·upted Building Safety 
services for residents and businesses; and, 

WHEREAS, the City cmrently does not have staff to perform these services without significant 
interruption and disrnption fol' the citizens of Pontiac; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City and the Contrnctor to extend the current 
agt·eement to insme unintel'rupted services to the Citizens of Pontiac; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Contrncto1· agree to amend the ol'iginal Agl'eement, for the 
following professional services and conditions: 

l. Amend Section 2.3 to read as follows: 

Du1'atlon: As budgeted, starting January 1, 2021 extend Building and Safety Se1·vices tlll'Ollgh 
Decembel' 31, 202lwith an option to ex.tend further on a month-to-month basis until December 
31, 2022 by mutual agrnement and with 90-day advanced notice of tet·mination by eithe1· pm'ly. 



2. Amend Section 3.2.1 to read as follows as follows: 

3,2 Compensation. Conti·actor shall receive compensation in the following manner: 
3.2. l For the pel'iod cotnmencing January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2021, a monthly 
payment from the City in the amount of $143,795. 

If the mutual option is exe1·cised, then for the period commencing Ja11ua1·y 1, 2022 and 
continuing on a month"to"month basis up tltltil December 31, 2022, a monthly payment from the 
City in the amount of $146,670, 

ADDENDUM J Is executed and made effective as provided above. 

Contractor: 

Wade Trim Associates, Inc. 

By:_.__/-__ v_. ~-----
Printed Name: Shawn W. Keough 

Title/Position: Senior Vice President 

City of Pontiac: 

By:_~----~----

Prlnted Name: 

Tltle/Positlon: ___ ~ ___ ~_L ____ _ 



#14 
RESOLUTION 



DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

December 8, 2021 

MEMORANDUM 
City of Pontiac 

Finance Department 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-3118 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Darin Carrington - Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Law Enforcement Service Agreement with Oakland County Sheriff's Office 

The City of Pontiac has been contracting with the Oakland County Sheriff for providing law enforcement 
services for the City. The City's current Law Enforcement Service Agreement with the Oakland County 
Sheriff's office will expire on December 31, 2021. The Sheriff's office has proposed a new Three (3) year 
contract for the period from January 1, 2022 thru December 31, 2024. This proposed agreement and the 
rates for the agreement are scheduled to be presented before the Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners on December 9, 2021. 

Most of the provisions in the contract remains the same except the number of officers and compensation 
amount. As you will recall, beginning in this fiscal year, the City added several new deputies for road 
patrol and additional community policing resources. The rates charged under the proposed agreement 
would increase in average by 1.82% for 2022 and 2.70% for 2023 and 2.78% for 2024. There are no 
major changes in the contract terms and condition except the number of contracted officers and the 
compensation amount as given below: 

Contracted Officers 
Captain 
Lieutenant 
Patrol Sergeant 
Detective Sergeant 
Deputy II 
Patrol Investigator 
Front Desk Security Deputies 
Office Support Clerk 
Office Specialist 

Total 

Year 2018 to 2021 
1 
2 
7 
1 
50 
18 
12 
4 

95 

Year 2022 to 2024 
1 
3 
8 
1 
61 
18 
12 
2 
1 

107 



Contract Amount 

Existing Contract Proposed Contract 

$11,314,497 $11,641,970 $11,979,684 $14,971,426 $15,370,279 $15,791,666 

If Council agrees that the Law Enforcement Service Agreement with the Oakland County Sheriff office 
renewed for three (3) more years, then the following resolution would be in order: 

WHEREAS, the O.C.S.O has demonstrated its ability to faithfully execute the terms of the Agreement for 
the last three years; and, 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes the importance of maintaining uninterrupted Law Enforcement Services at 
the City of Pontiac; and, 

WHEREAS, the City currently does not have its own Police Department; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City and the O.C.S.O to enter into an agreement for three more 
years; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and O.C.S.O to enter in to an Agreement, for the Law Enforcement Services at 
the City of Pontiac: 

Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the attached Law 
Enforcement Service Agreement with the Oakland County Sheriff's Office for a period of three years from 
January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2024. 



Good morning, 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF 

MICHAEL J. BOUCHARD 

Pontiac Substation 

Here are the total stats since the transition from July 31, 2011, from Pontiac Police 
Department to the Oakland County Sheriffs Office. Also, I have broken it down 
by each year. 

Totals 
Call for service: 675,457 
Incident Report written: 78,283 
Case assigned to the Detective Section: 42,461 
Arrests made: 51,819 
Warrants obtained by the Detective Section: 10,688 
Traffic Citations issued: 89,193 
Guns seized: 763 
Narcan saves: 176 (Since 2018) 

2011 (July-December 2011) 
Call for service: 30,244 
Incident Report written: 1,748 
Case assigned to the Detective Section: 915 
Arrests made: 1,077 
Warrants obtained by the Detective Section: 368 
Traffic Citations issued: 6,685 
Guns seized: 10 

2012 
Call for service: 63,599 
Incident Report written: 8,949 
Case assigned to the Detective Section: 4,411 
Arrests made: 4,490 
Warrants obtained by the Detective Section: 706 
Traffic Citations issued: 8,871 
Guns seized: 12 



2013 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF 

MICHAEL J. BOUCHARD 

Pontiac Substation 

Call for service: 64,276 
Incident Report written: 8,025 
Case assigned to the Detective Section: 4,217 
Arrests made: 4,925 
Warrants obtained by the Detective Section: 545 
Traffic Citations issued: 11,454 
Guns seized: 16 

2014 
Call for service: 64,602 
Incident Report written: 6,941 
Case assigned to the Detective Section: 3,693 
Arrests made: 4,900 
Warrants obtained by the Detective Section: 484 
Traffic Citations issued: 9,835 
Guns seized: 42 

2015 
Call for service: 62,502 
Incident Report written: 7,475 
Case assigned to the Detective Section: 4,041 
Arrests made: 5, 1 71 
Warrants obtained by the Detective Section: 596 
Traffic Citations issued: 7,769 
Guns seized: 45 

2016 
Call for service: 68,902 
Incident Report written: 7,225 
Case assigned to the Detective Section: 3,800 
Arrests made: 5,905 
Warrants obtained by the Detective Section: 1,289 
Traffic Citations issued: 10,309 



Guns seized: 81 

2017 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF 

MICHAEL J. BOUCHARD 

Pontiac Substation 

Call for service: 68,939 
Incident Report written: 7,216 
Case assigned to the Detective Section: 3,861 
Arrests made: 5,900 
Warrants obtained by the Detective Section: 1,254 
Traffic Citations issued: 10,309 
Guns seized: 5 7 

2018 
Call for service: 65,919 
Incident Report written: 7,497 
Case assigned to the Detective Section: 4,242 
Arrests made: 5,243 
Warrants obtained by the Detective Section: 1,194 
Traffic Citations issued: 8,407 
Guns seized: 72 
Narcan saves: 17 

2019 
Call for service: 65,242 
Incident Report written: 7,464 
Case assigned to the Detective Section: 4,536 
Arrests made: 4,416 
Warrants obtained by the Detective Section: 1,365 
Traffic Citations issued: 4,462 
Guns seized: 13 2 
Narcan saves: 38 



2020 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF 

MICHAEL J. BOUCHARD 

Pontiac Substation 

Call for service: 65,803 
Incident Report written: 8,519 
Case assigned to the Detective Section: 4,626 
Arrests made: 5,243 
Warrants obtained by the Detective Section: 1,627 
Traffic Citations issued: 7,464 
Guns seized: 120 
Narcan saves: 24 

2021 (January-November) 
Call for service: 55,429 
Incident Report written: 7,224 
Case assigned to the Detective Section: 4,119 
Arrests made: 3,549 
Warrants obtained by the Detective Section: 1,260 
Traffic Citations issued: 3,628 
Guns seized: 176 
Narcan saves: 97 

-650 vehicles have been tagged for abandon throughout the city during this year 
-56 community events have been attended by community deputies along with the 
school events this year. 
-162 cases were assigned to the School Resources Officer this year 



#15 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

PLANNING DIVISION 
47450 Woodward Ave I PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342 

TELEPHONE: 248.758.2800 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

HONORABLE MAYOR WATERMAN, COUNCIL PRESIDENT WILLIAMS & 
PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 

770 ORCHARD LAKE ROAD 
AMORPHOUS SOLID LLC DBA EPIPHANY GLASS 
PROPOSED CONVEYANCE BY QUIT CLAIM DEED 
NORTHWEST 20 FEET OF LOTS 8 & 9 

DECEMBER 6, 2021 

The owner of property located at 770 Orchard Lake Road PIN 64-14-31-403-007 is Amorphous Solid LLC, 
dba Epiphany Glass. The property consists of lots 8 and 9 of the Elkins addition to the City of Pontiac 
Subdivision, other than the northwest 20 feet of the lots. The northwest 20 feet of the lots PIN 64-14-31-
403-006 were conveyed to City via a Warranty Deed in 1956. From the City Attorney review of legal 
records, the conveyance was made for an alley; there is no evidence that an alley was constructed. 

Despite the northwest 20 feet of Lots 8 and 9 being titled to the City, the property is on the tax rolls and 
Amorphous Solid LLC has paid property taxes on the City parcel since 2001, see Exhibit "G" of the 
attachment. The City Attorney's office suggests Pontiac City Council approve the City's quit claiming of 
the northwest 20 feet of lots 8 and 9 to Amorphous Solid LLC. A resolution to approve the conveyance of 
the property to Amorphous Solid LLC is included in the attachment, as Exhibit "I" and the Quit Claim Deed 
to Amorphous Solid LLC [for no monetary consideration] is attached as Exhibit "J". 



GMIIGIARMARCO, MULLINS & HORTON; P.C. 
·. . . .. ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

TO: 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGED MEMORANDUM 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 
City Council 

FROM: George A. Contis, Esq. 

CC: 

DATE: 

John Clark, Esq. and Anthony Chubb, Esq. 

October 13, 2021 

RE: 770 Orchard Lake Road- Proposed Conveyance by Quit Claim Deed of Northwest 
20 feet of Lots 8 and 9, Elkins Addition City of Pontiac According the Plat Recorded 
in Liber 8, Page 6, Oakland County Records 

The current owner of the real property located at 770 Orchard Lake Road (Tax Parcel 

Number 64-14-31-403-007) is Amorphous Solid LLC, a Michigan limited liability company 

("Amorphous"). The property consists of Lots 8 and 9 of the Elkins addition to City of Pontiac 

Subdivision other than the northwest 20 feet of the referenced Lots. The northwest 20 feet of the lots 

(Tax Parcel Number 64-14-31-403-006) were conveyed to the City via a Warranty Deed dated May 

18, 1956 and recorded June 21, 1956 inLiber 3545, Page 145, Oakland County Records (See Exhibit 

"A"). From all accounts, it appears that the conveyance was made so that an alley could be 

constructed. There is no indication that an actual alley was constructed on the parcel; so it existed as 

a paper alley. A depiction of the property in question is provided on the attached Exhibit "B." 

Conveyances of 770 Orchard Lake Road Since 1995 

• Hod's Radio & Television Service, Inc., a Michigan corporation, received the property via 

warranty deed dated June 15, 1995 and recorded October 11, 1995 in Liber 15734, Page 594, 

Oakland County Records. The recorded copy of the warranty deed (attached as Exhibit "C") 

conveyed "parts of Lots 8 and 9." 

• Jason Ruff and April Wagner, as joint tenant with rights of survivorship received the 

property via Warranty Deed dated June 11, 1997 and recorded June 24, 1997 in Liber 17324, 

Page 580, Oakland County Records. The recorded copy of the warranty deed (attached as 

Exhibit "D") conveyed lots 8 and 9 except for the northwesterly 20 feet thereof. 

• Amorphous received the property via quit claim deed (from Mr. Ruff and Ms. Wagner) dated 

October 26, 2011 and recorded October 31, 2011 in Liber 42520, Page 95, Oakland County 



Memorandum 
October 13, 2021 
Page 2 

Records ( attached as Exhibit "E"). Mr. Ruff and Ms. Wagner conveyed more than what they 

originally received from Hod's Radio & Television Service, Inc. In other words, they also 

conveyed the northwest 20' of the Lots 8 and 9 even though that property was owned by the 

City. 

A title insurance commitment (attached as Exhibit "F") provided by the proposed lender for 

Amorphous (it is attempting to refinance its mortgage debt) confirms the status of ownership as to 

the two parcels. 

Tax Payment History 

Despite record title being of the northwest 20 feet of Lots 8 and 9 being held by the City, the 

property in question is on the tax rolls and Amorphous has paid property taxes on the. City parcel 

since at least 1999 (attached Exhibit "G"). Evidence of Amorphous' payment of property taxes on 

its own parcel is set forth on Exhibit "H." 

Conclusion 

Despite the northwest 20 feet of Lots 8 and 9 being titled to the City, it appears on the tax 

rolls which taxes have been paid by Amorphous since at least 1999 (BS&A online records only go 

back to 1999). In light of this, the City Attorney's office recommends that Council approve the 

City's quit claiming of the northwest 20 feet of Lots 8 and 9 to Amorphous. The question of 

whether the conveyance should be done for no consideration (gratis) is for Council to determine. A 

proposed resolution approving the conveyance of the property to Amorphous is attached as Exhibit 

"I." The proposed quit claim deed to Amorphous (for no monetary consideration) is attached as 

Exhibit "J." 

I would be pleased to answer any questions or comments you may have when this matter 

comes before you for consideration 



EXHIBIT "A" 

t•t~;Jfj,J:iJ~l~ii '}$~1:irui littfr t\111!, ii,11nrn1tli: \l;m1,pJ11:q 
9.~-!~,>i,;· l\~r;,~·< 

; i:>,...,::;;.· Ji~1,:,~.H}<;j"E__: Th.it. 1,~~oa:.fu--C. Su:i);
0

-±r>.1~i:r -~tl ~Eff> h . .!:k}.bd r, ;; ,·• 
7;.~;i-i L~ C>'.mk~.y ~:-.tt:if~·t"·;·~,ICQ~'t,1_y·~- :~_i~ \~l;r;_. 

i4~j .. <..:. 

t 



EXHIBIT "B" 

7;2-J.,~ 

)it;. ~';~; ., 
-=s-·-·· '~-½,:• . ;.~:--~'~· =:.....~= 



EXHIBIT "C" 

• • l • 
b()W-,UJ,~lll/fflll#~ 'nat•iiamiuisil,n,...iM,UJOM~,W...11',;MUE.'fll:ST.i!b•IJO'Vi::k'r~ 
i,i. ~ ll1CILUJ> JOII~. ,M., ~rttAJill-J(»lG'l:NSIJN ud ~ J~"t, aAJ,i:l'«lf!A ./OIi~ -loit ,.;;i,, -

-~~'~ia,,...,;tj.u,.Cl!J,,;(f'l,o..,._~;,r~.,j,.,.,i~~-~ .... ~, = ,~M,Wo,<, ~ ;,.ri tJs lil .tScdlo,, n, Oli'., ,.,_,,.. ~ .. Ulie 35)6, ,.,,,m .t.......,,~ ~. 

{'1~,t--,fd,--IDfll'f. ,r_u,rs •11 
-M'J Jt • 1cF- tlr$- 6,f 1 

""'i=""'--~"'-
.... ~ fd ~ .ro.. ('H.tlil ~- 11>ii lnder;, ....,.ii!' f..., 1a,: ,.._ 1n MSA 1.4~5)1•} tM M5A 7~•>-

~· 
-

' -__ ~~-----
~··· · .· -~......, -~~ 

mn.W t t:u:z✓ 

o~C:i.53~-~.?};J 

Q.K. -S.H. 

t)t, 'Q 'l \~5 



l'f.lffl i, ~tntt:.w • 
~ .. ·• ... + .. ·· )IL.. • ~tY f' o.s).l,an~ 
.,...., .. "" ___ -.,... ....... ""'"" 15-;::t 

~!wl,~. -'---'-'-o"-,. 

~-n;,,-.. 
'l'cbn,1.1 

• 

l!-~ni....io,,,:;-,. 

tt<lii '$ Ra;dl,o .l\" 'To-hvisioii S~rvke lnr. 
77G Or\:Chat:d ·L.ike Ro~d 
J>pntia',:c, ·lH 4$341 
),,,d~..:., ...... ,~ 



EXHIBIT "D" 

J~ ZQ ~1 I 3 1 q l 3 

,u.o $ 
ti;~ ~Ar!riil· 
·t ""·* 1"1i!mJ11( (OffllO) 
~P\Hl l 1;2 M. !laill'ft .:n 
fHii re:~· l:f;IL_~ ~ 
ll!ll(S.t;(ID.~0~~ 

.WAflRANTV·oem. COftPORAllClN. ~ Foon 

KNCi¥fAU.llat8V:.,m';$EP~: Thill lio,a. U.Uo 1, 'f•lni•ioo: 11ittViu, lJ>e., a:: 
ltlcbiqlUI Co,:po,:&t.loc. . 

~~- u:io ;,to<i. Bw:t,, W•t.dorl!, ltt· 0~1, . 
~s} ~ Waria/ll(Cfkl if_.<:<1 4. llift W J;>.-h ·•• llllg:n,,~, h JQi.nt Ten)Jl\t;; wl tl., 
fun Rigllts of Sul'v,v<m,hip. 

fo(lh,, Ml ~kin of 011111 l!tlllllll!I) nrn::m; .'t'IIOOtlln i. W0/100 OOc.LA:lUI 
· uus.000.00) 

~l<l p,;nijct.-.:1. ~""i;idlll. ...... ,l',l,lo<>•• ot :-_, ~-'\-~ 
.';;l.,t:::r::, 

,,,;f:~, .•. ~~8~:~~lli 
'>\'O"U,Ut<=c~ ··,• ~• 1 ,, 

~ H:1'~': .. ~ :- \' ,t,<, ~1-

r;;x?._j;_:''~~;~::;:;.;; :~:--

·C...\'~4 ... 9'~ 
~. ~t:<'¥~~~ 

~! ,o,~,= 
. µ) 'ST 

n1'1!~¼!. ~·i"ll!~..., ~t1i;,,-
lly JS!aiiil 1r. e.,,.-A.?,A.,?:vz;;;;:;(..;;, 

, M Prodl\lilt · · · · . . , 

Br-~---------~~ Its _____________ """ 

,19'7 



EXIDBIT "E" 

llranch :D.E2 IJ!ler :](RAU 

QUJTCl,AlMDEEJJ 

)ASOH <,; Rllff, ~ i>ingfil. m\Jn ~~d Af'Rlt, !-kWAGN~R, ~ •lng~ wqman, ,i.Jofnt Tei>:iots ,l'ith full Rightn! 
S-uiKIPimhrp, · 

·;lh~adot~~rii: 610 /in~ S~, lli,m.fn9h;,rn. iirr:fJi\lart~BOCWand 3190ai.Fj,;Jgc!l>'., Foittliic, Ml 4~i 

~~lt~lo\S w:· AM~iifHOOS $<iliD, \...1..t., ~ f<idi~n l!p,~.U;,tiiljtyci,mi;oiry 

u,;; r~i!i,;,ii,g dO'..tn'beil ~·•~••~·u; !MDt:f cit )•ontJ.Jc,tou(l!y•oto,Waiid,&1il Sraili•e/ Mli:!llga11, iu•v,.\: 

!.~TS H• il,c"lii.i<lN'! .l\1'1llTiQNl\t, sueopJlSi6!'i," I\S ltl!,;:ll_l'UJ.J!D.t!I 
i;fli~Ril, PAGi!(S) lt Ol' PU.TS; OAl<I.ANI> ,;OUNTY RECOflDSr MICHIGAN 

srAit Cf M1ctt!GAfl l 
1 SS: 
} 

600(= 

1t.e for~~. iri:1'. ' .. umwt wa, 5.ub',c~ a~ ackito~'_.~ bef""1 .nie.c. llii<;2.6t1' d~y oyt,\::lott<r, 201!; t,;• 
APRJL M.WAGN£R, a smgle w,oman. LY'.' · ct. C:: .,;;,f.<..'t.t,:€ 

oAkLANI>', 1'ii Doi.'umcll!iDb 9c 20 l t.l9il57J 
Printed on:li/1:il2!)11 3;14 Pl'll 

-~uf!ty{ •i~f!J~O 
. . · u~•r. 0,1 O<,l<J,tJd :· 
,l<Y 0,0,f\l[,S>OO l«j,~;-i,i J._;;J-:/1,,~i>Ur/ I 

FtirH?!(r"St'i#l.h4P~. . . . . .. ·, . · .. 
. WH£ij IU::Ci/Rll<,ll; ll£)UilN1:o; 

· Onler :. toOM?88 



EXIDBIT "F" 

DEVON TlTLE:AGENCY . . . . . fa~o Gf¢qV.~ R~,ad 
Tr.uy.Mt 4?P$4 

Pt\tlhec"24B,.273:;4'30U 
F ali~ 24s;273;4301, 
.iv~{,w:ifi~~1;iiie.i;,~ 

lssuin.v·orfice 's. ALTA Re gjsfrf 10' lb3369.Y 

,Agent for Old.Republic NationalTitie lnsi.Ji:a ntteCornpiinlf 

Ti:fln&1i;f 1o'ij. tcfffnli(fc~t,on Q~ia•fo.r re.fefer1¢e•9n/l/: 

Pr.u15efWAd.d1:ess. 170 _Q"rt:hard ~a~e !to11-d;.Ponfo1~, Ml 46341 antl_'-itiL O,rt;~ar~ Liik~,~oad, Pontiac, Ml-48J41. 

¢6MMtt~EN1" f PR/llTL.E IN~Uaj\NQE." 
$01:U:PLJLE.A' 

t Qotrmilm'en.tpatet Augqst l3, io21,~t~:9i11lm 

2. Polter, tg be ls.sueih 
lOAl{POLICY 

'M ALTAI;oan Policy oflJtle insiirancii (6c1i .ilii} . . . . . . 
'proposeflnsured: 
Ml.Bankiitssuccessors and/orassiuns; as their interest.may 3p-pear 

3, The: esis1te_:~tinter1?sfin:tn'e'Lsihd:'c/~.sctibiJ Ofrefefr~i:I Hl.!!l this \;:omn1itroeri'ti;;:F1\fSif!1pli 

4. The Titfe fri,.aUhe C•mmitirliit1t Date vil"~fe1!in: 
ParcetT:Amorph~usS6fo!t; l.:.Lt:,a.Mitl'iigan titi11tild LiabiiityCompany 
p:;Jrc~titcit(hifiPontiao ·- · · ·- - --

$, tll~Jj:ti'Cl [s l:lesctlbe~·~$ foliri,\;i: _ 
.-Land sku;i!sd in;fh!l City 6( Pontiac, C.ourityol' O'akland,'.Stale tifM1chfg~ridescrlli-6ld asfolfows'. 

Parcell: 

Ai~iOON.I 
$4ilii,ooo.oa 

-tofi~i.~q .9:,'-ixcepf thii. Morthiili~$lerfy Z0f ~loi l~ et~of, ELk:JNEi~.0.P!TfOf,t, as)'.eciO:rd ed:in' Lib ii($, P~zja $ ".Qaklaii<l 
ptj untyR~¢9(ds .. 

,P~tm~ 

:rijMcli;~o/r$t~rJy;ggJ~et:i:!h~gtJf,~".@A,9:i~l$1N:$AtlDlTlQN~J{sJ~slir~-~'d[ltili!'i'i:i,YEl;,·•B~trn·B,,c,9aRIM~:g9.iJN:f. 

tiEVbN TITLi:AGENCY fli . . 

Tl,1.spa[ie l$ dii!J. ?parl ,jf~ 4/jJiAl 7AO');omm11m,;ni (or1J,i;,fns1,•~ii6' Js$Uf!.t! fy ~R~jiiib/ic /lfallani,.ift,t"c /i?/il,>i;;i'icf Cbliipf!fij. Tills Cq);u,itm~n1 
~-·notv.1# Wthppt lh~/:ip([t;eJlb~iComfy.Q11enl fdissiJ~ Ppfcy;W, Go-W(Tii(l)efi>l;Cpndil~#i Sibifr/~'!;A; ~c/ledp,1;, B;· Patti--: Reg,.(re(l]tnt,-· Si:/l_e"rJ~h_, 
B; Pa1t II~ Exc,,p(.Qns 1111,ra i,,'O~hle,'-$/[)l)alure bJ I/le, CDf1¥?any r,r !Is ISS!i/nf}. li.genllt)al /i>f!'y· I:,; II? eJ;clron,c(Qir,f · · <,e,jer,Jte,:i 11127i202111:16 AM 



Katharina Rausch, Authorized Signatory 



All ciflhe following Requi~ments must be rneL 

SCl:f EQULE s; PART I' 
r{1;qUlrements 

(;_oinnil_trii~rtt.No. 10f.109i8lf 

Toi; Pro.posed lnsL1red mLJst nqlifytnef¢ornpany in w.rifing 9f trie mime of any party nqtref!'ln:eq!fl in,this.GcJmmitnient 
who Will cibtain an inf$fe~t In the.Land or Who wm make a k;ian on the Land, The comparty may then nial.{e addff\QnaJ 
R!'Jquirernehts orExcept!ons. 

1, Pay the agree(); amoJJnt for the esta~ or interesi. to be ireure,.t 

3: Pay the.premium,;;;. fees, and Pharge$ for the Policy to the Ctjmpariy 

4. Documents satisfa¢t.of'/ to the Company th~t oorwey ttie Title or create the Mortgage to be lnsuied, or both, f0i.l$\ be 
JjrQperly auihofized, exequled, tjellvere<:f; icirid recorded fii the Putiilc Reciotds 

5, Pay unps31d !a)(;;s and .pSSe!,Etn1:nts. unress stiPWn paiq_ 

6, The. (nsurar m.u;.t t:Je, 09t\fied onmy constr:uctioti !mprQliement;., renova~ions Qr remG-d$1iqg ~ fe)Se.rves ti).; right tp: 
.add any,additional reqwlieinents 

T We mU!).t be f,!.Jrhl~):ied f.t?in Amorphous Solid1 L.LC. a 1:0P'f'Of[1) t!)e ArMlias of qrganizatipi'l (2). written operating 
agr~ent arid all ar:nendi:neht:a tliereto;. (;3) current rriem~rship r.oster antj (4)' evidehte pfgajd starictlrig (or'current 
regiskation} of. said liiilitea Halilllty company: Uriless the mortgage is exe¢uted byallmembeis, We musfalso be 
fdrnisheg_ wilh evkten~S:ai(sfactor-;~ot)ie oompany that ~U: necessary consents;. auth9ri~e:fiorolh resc;ily\ic;ins, notices 
and action:ii r1=il.i:tiog to the mort91ige. ,irid \!j9 eiiecutioriarid qeJ1Very oft~ fno.rtgage as. reqi,Jlreq uridet appUc,a,ble ~VI 
,md the govenilng ®cumerifs have been conducted; given or pfop:,r!y waived. · 

&. Record DiSyharge o.f\he Modgage-ln the ar;not.1nt of $125,000.,GO given by AmorpholY,,l Solid, LLC ti:>. PauJHUi<ley, 
ciated October 26, 2011 1 record~d Ocfobef31, 201 \ iii Liber 43520; P<ige 96, Oakland ¢iiurily Records: 

9, lNTENTlONALLY OMITTED, 

10,. 'R$¢orcrWaiiaotyoeecffra01;¢1t,J,ofp911ti<'lc:lo.Arni1fPf:iD.9s,$¥1fo:l;Ja:1:,;:9.JP~rl:fit1)' 

1 t Th., policy to, be lssu~d Will contairi the AL TA 33. DisbOlt/ement Endo[sern~nt and the ALTA 3~ Coi:\j;tJ:uotlon Loan 
l,.os$ ofpi-ioi(ty qr3/2 1 Constrt,Jctlon,Loa,n Lo;.s of Priorrty a Direct fcayfn.ent or32.';il.C6rn;tr(ldiqn L.:'ii,nl"riority • Lo5s 
of Priority.- ihsured's Direct-Payment Endorsement; in the forms atlaohed, 

i:2: Rei::Qrd Notice of Comrnencirn'?r.it rel,;1\~1,;i to c;Qnstn.lbtlon Clf.'rthe $1.ll:iJet:.t PfopectY, 

1-3,. Subm.it executed original looemnity Agreements frpril borr9werand builder;. 

14, furnish tq the Companyafl!lly executed,~\iiorri-sl.;iternent from geneml con\raoJor, Wilh, flrlLorj:)art\al iJncondilldni,\ or 
c:ondll[onal waivers from all $Ubcontrai:;tors and/of suppliers that tiave l:>3en paid or \s currently due payment. 

i5. Record mort93g~ to \Se f(!Sl1ied arn:f sutiinit eVldem::e satisfactory to Cornpahy ihat each sl9n~fl!;l ;an authorized 
signatofy and .ts at least 1 a·years of age. · 

1tl'. NOTE: The addressfs) recited herein isiare for lnfdrrtliltl0fl<!l pUrpqse~ 6nly; The Gompar.y ri1'itheii gllptantees nor 
Insures !ts accuracy, . 

17. NOTE: No lia!Jility Is as.sumed by· the company{qr ,;1:scertalning the stalus pf cli!iiy charge& ah(:lthe inswte<:l 1s 
cautioned to obtain llie current status of thP...se payments .. 

18 NOTE_ . The following lnfdrrnal!oil ita proV!deo for fnfon11ationafpµrpos¢$ only, ttie aCFLJtac.y of Which i:s heither 
gl1aranteed rior Insur~. iilcfuoi0g l:>utnot Hnilte,d toPririclpi!I Ric;$fden9e Ex.$mptfo/1 stalU$:.-NoJf<lPilitY is assoriied bV 
the !::ompany for tncrease occa$loned 'd,J re!toactive revah.reitkinor change ln la'rid usaQe·or 1oss.ofari'{ Prihcipal 

This page )sonly-a pf/It of a- 201 ~i•,LTil'' commnmentf0< rm!'! /nsur-ance_rssue/1 P,\I 91d. Republic NattMai TIiie insuriJ_nce Co(11f}Bily: This cornmitrneilto 
/S'710( ya/idWl1hiiµI 1/,e Notice; Iha .Commit;,:;,nl. lo /ssuePoll,Y,' lhe C,;,,rrmilrreol Condt1/ol)S; $cheduleA/ S<1f-,4uta &, Pa_rl.1- R!l<lilif,;(T)er,/s; Sch<idu/17 
fr,_ P,i;t II- &cepUon# and• ioVh~r;s/gniilure by tM.Comp~ny or ifs tss111,ig a/ii,nl lh~t ffi'JY k~ tn eli,c/ion/c fcrni: ·· \3eoeratad am iioi111:1 s Alil 



Qi;v<iii Till(, A!;l~fo;y AL tA ¢c.,romHrnentrq(l1!1a 1risutrin.ce 
R1:sldence l::xei'.Tiption status for insured pierriises. 

rax lnf(]rmation as fourid: . . . 
commonly' knovm as; 770 orchard Lak~ Read; Pq11Uac; MI 
Tax 1.Q. Nurn~r:1.~t·-40'.HQT(Pw~l.1} 
2021 SEY: $$2,540.00 
2021 TaxabteNaJue: $58,120.00 
2021 $UmrnerTax Amount; $3;130.$5 PAID· 
2020. Winter Tax Amount: $106.12 PA1D 
$.pic.ial. A. ~e'$stne. (its: N9 speci . .il ass¢s~ifn. ents' itiCf·ll·de<:l lri the above a.mol.1nts 
Princlp;:i,l Resklence Exemption: 0% for.tax,y~ar 2020 

~!Qtt:1{K16o/n·•tf'~!J.St~k(!i,tf~d;;Pontrac,,~At 
202,t'SE;\:': .· ;00 

1::.1t;;;,:,;:\t1\i1£($,i"'Hf\\f,,••¼'•'1ri•~• 
NPJE: It h<ls, ~n reql/E;sled by the Proposed Insured that the Company. Issue ils AL TA Loan Policy of Title Insurance 
without slandard·excepficins. . . . 

This page Is oniy11 part di a 2015 ALTA~ cotnml!imntior: T/tln /nst1fanc1i issµe(! by Old kepilbtic Natrona/ Tille insdrance CO(f,PiJny: T/lls Commit,:ooill 
Is rlotya/idWithoul the Nd/ice; /ht, Commitment 10 /sstlePv/lcy; /he Commitnxml C,orldit/ons: Sthwula A; S1;he;Jwe B. Parl. J - R/l<IU/remi11ts; Scheidu/e 
8, P,rt II- 1!.'<cepUori5 and a c01111/er-s/gn~ture·by the Company r:x ii,; /ssu/llg ;,iJe/Jt that may pe in etec/ron/c form. · Ganerata,f 8/27/2021.11:1B·AM 



SCHEDULE B, PARTfl 
~l<ceptions· 

THI!'). COMMITMENT DOES NOT REPUBLISH .. ANY .COVENANT, CQNDITION, RESTRICTION, QR LIMITATlO~J 
CONTAINED IN ANY ooCUMEr-lT REFERRED TO IN THI$ COMMITMENT TO THE EXTENT tHAT THE SPECIFIC 
COVENAt..JT, CONDITION, RESTRICTlON,OR UMlTAT[ON VIOLATES $TATE OR FEDERAL LAW BASED ON RACE, 
COLOR,. RELIGION, s~x, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, GENDER IOENrITY, HANDICAP, FAMILIAL STA'fUS, OR 
NATIONALOR1GIN, . 

The Policy Will nol insure against I.ass or damage resulting from the terms and pr:ovisi.ons of any le.ase· or easement 
identified in Schedule. A and wlUJnclude the following Exceptions unless cleated to.lhe satJSfactlon otlhe Company: 

3. 

5, 

6. 

7, 

8, 

Any defect, lien, encumbrance, <1dverse cialm, or other matter that appears for the flrst time in fhe Public Records cir 
is created, attacJ,es, or 1s disclosed between thii! Commitment Date and the date on Which all cif the Schedule 8, Pait 
I - Requrrements are met. 

tmJ. f;;Jc~, Jightt in\eres\$, or cl arms Wh!cti ace not s!°l6'Hn fN \he Pllbllc Recotdsout .il,a\ cou!ct be ascertai~d 'r!-f an 
inii~c\ion of ttie Land or cy- making lnqutiy of persons in pos,s~slon of the Land., .. . 

Easements, 1iens1 or efic1Jn,brance;,, otol13ims,lhereof notshoijm,bythe Publii;:.R"'°ords. 

Any encroachmen~. t1ncunibrance,. viqlatibn, varlati9n, or adverse oli:r.umslance affecting the Titre tncludii1g 
oricfeparicle!:!, c-ollfticts in t:,oundel'y lin¢s; i;(lorwge lri ;ir7$.,.or any other f?cts th.it wou!d.be disdosecit::ry en accurat~ 
and cotnpfete lar,d siJrVey oHhe Land, and that are riot shQWn In the PUblic Records, 

Any [ten$ or right to lren for services, laoor or material Imposed by taw and not shown by the Public Records .. 

Rights a.no claJrns. cif _t:i~rtieS in pr;issession, and anyone qlarrning tJ,J, through or ,H''li;lE)r them, 

Homestead rights, if any, or the spouse of any individual fhsufed or of .,ny lndMduat $hown herein to be a party In 
ititent!st 

'Buildfng and usi; restticliohs notapr;earing inlhe record chain oflitle, but omitting restrictions; If any, base.ct on race, 
t:otor,. religion or national origin . 

Taxes arid asse$srnants 110t discoverable. due to limited ava\labmty or closures Df tnunicipalitfes, and, further, those 
not yet due .1nd p11yable a,t Cornrnltrnent ,;late. 

Th~ lien, if any, of. re9I estqte iaxes, a$sessmentsi 1ond/9r water and sewer C)il;lrges, not d\scoveratte du1;, to limited 
availabilir/ Pf closµres of rnun)cipalities, ;:liid, t.urthet those that ar!l not yet due anq p,;iyable or Ill.at .. re not shown a.s 
existing \lens in .the records of any taxing authority that le\/i~ taxes or .;ssessrnents on rear property or in tl'le Public 
Records; including the Jfen ior taxes,. assessrnenls, and/or watepind sewer charges, W\:lich •may be added' iri the tax 
rolls or taxbiU arter the Pale. of C!osiri9. The Company "15$1.imes no liability for the tax intreai;es occasioned bi/ tne 
re\roa<;tNe revaluation or chan.Q!;S in the Land usage at [ass of any. homestead exemption ~tatvs f.or \he ltisure<:! 
premises · · 

11. The address(s) recited herein is/are for informational purpQ$es oniy The CompaflY neither guar;mtees rior )nsures its 
accuracy. · 

12. No l!abTTitY fs ;;is$urnt;id Pf the company for ascertaining lhl'J ~atus of utmfy charges .,ind th.e ir'1$t.Jred iii cautlonElcl to 
obtain the current status of thes.e payments. · · 

13, Qil, gas and miher;;il reservations of every kind and nature and all-righlli; pnvUeges pertinent or incidenfal thereto, 
recorded or wnretordeq; 

14.. · Any and all easement$ and restrictions as shown on thE'l recorded plat. 

i5, Rights and claims of parties in possession, and anyone claiming by, through or under them. 

rnis P~!J" /s oniy;i pall !ii a 2()1 Ii iiL.'(l'c" Gommi1men/i01 iui,, insuta11ce1ssued by iJtci RBpUb/1,;Nalfona/ fltfe insurance Con,pany. This t;omm,1rooni, 
It mJI V/1/ld without file Nolie~ !he Commilmenf lo l~sM Po/k:y; /he Commitment. Ctillditions; l,chJ,dule A: Sohe<iula B. Part I - /'lequir'1me11f$;- SchedU/&c 
8, Pilf1 II - E,Xc~pf/ons a/l<i ~ col/nter'.$l!/!1Bhire ~y 111& Comp~ny « /Is "/ss~i11<;1 ag~11l thal msy he in ~l~tronlt J\:rm: Ganerat~d.812712ait 11,1s /l,.M 



"16.. TE}fl'llS, cqndition~ and provisjor19 coht<iinecnn Warranty De<:id Into City of Pontiac repqcdeel.1nlibef3545, Pa95145 
bf Oakland county Re0rds · · 

i1'.. Terms,. conditions and.provisions ctmlcllneddn Resolution recorded in{Jber.3586, Pao.¢ 4St ofOaklarid County 
Reebrds. ··· · ···· · ····· 

'!It Tei:ms,, coriditions. and provisions conb,~ine;din Notice of'Oommencernent r¢corded July 2B; 2021 inUb.=r 56617, 
Paae 45, Oaf<laild County Records · · 



EXHIBIT "G" 

10/1'312021 Parcel Nurnl>er-84-1¼1-403-006 i Olly of Pontiac I BS&A Online 

i SYLVAN Pontiac, Ml 48;!41 {i'riiperty Addie~,) 
i "-'<.,j N\,,nl>t,:~Ci,l-3f·,03.00,· 

1 !'top<!rty Owner: AMORPHOUS SOUD LLC 

I ~:.:~/::-::., .. od 

. Qv,niat ;ind TA•payla!t inforin~tioii I --------------------------------

le,i~! 0!?$<;rlp((qn 

. AMORPHOUS SOLID liC 
770 ORCl'lAAD I.AX! JID 
•!)Qt,_11!~~!,(l~~lc~l 

T,N; iUOE, _;:E(;ll ElJ!iNS ADDi-noN 1':N/,Y'?.O Fi OF t01)i B !i ;I 

~:caf~ulat!!i;ir~un_ts ?,ing~~d1!f.e_i,mtt•Jiti;e~tl)o1e ____ _ 

Sc£ OWNERJNfORMA1lON 

~Qu tt11\ ih.i.ri~~youi-un~cij;,apt!i.P4)1'tt~.rit dat~Q'.l·~rP~f torqci!f~l:>.4t .101nunts p..t.ia ~s afthc-s~-dfi~ d\'.l\trfQr t,hfs,µ(tj~rty .. 

~n~til.P!iyn:tmlO;i{f!. ilti/13)2021 l_lt=i~~ 

Ti>x History 

jreur 1- Tct,j A.mo•.ml \ Tc.tnl!'i1l< LartP,;id Total OU.!c j 

:roil · -Slimmer. $S8.80 .$88.80 07/1)2{2~1 $0,00 

:row Wioter $3,01 $3.G1 ritWiW! 10.00 
202.0 summer 1905'! $90,R 07/!)9/i.02q $0.00 

Wlnw ~-o.i $).1)4 J2,ilG/2Ql~- $0.00 

Sumiru:r $90,&3 \110.ip D7/09POW sifoo 
Wl11~r $3119 13.00 12,I07{20i8 $0.0o 
summer $5<1.9~ $90,SS 07(05/20.1&· $0.00 

Winier $2~ !2.56 121010011 !o.oo 
Summer $11857 $88.57 Q8/03/;017 $0.00 

W\nt-,:r $2,l!B $2.M· 12/12/2016 10:00 

S1.1mt"1W:r $aa.i;s saa,6, Qe,,05/2?16 SOQQ 
'M~w sm ii.ea j;/Olji()IS $i).ilo 

. Somioe< $83,91 $83,91 07/W2015 $000 

Win~r $2$0 $2.$0 !2/03(<014 $0Jj0 

Sut:nm·e,r S90,54 S90,S4 Q7{30/20J'- $OJJO 

Wio~~r $:1.79 $2.79 11/15/,?013 SO.no 
summer $114.00 $114.06 07/10,'2013 iono 

... · 
Wln!»r $331 !331 12/;1/~!)12 $0.00 

Summi:r $131'.11 $1~1.73: OlVOl/.012 $0.00 

Wi~t.E:t $233 $233 03,/07/2012. !(loo 

201i Sum~er $111,s.i $0.llO $111.s.4 ••lt.r.ldN~~)l-&o'le. 

i010- Wiriter ~ sie 1,/13~10 $0.00 

2010· $0mmer $102.47 $102;47 ~7[.18.@10 $000 
;2009 Whmir $2.2~ $22.\ 12/09/200'l $0,tl() 

~9 ~mmi:r. 110245' $102,35 01/30/2009 IO-oo 

2008 WlpW $2.15 $2.iS 01/(15/2009 $0.00 

2008 SU.mttler $9S3i $9537 07/11/2008 !ooo 
'2!)07 . ·Wimer ~1.91 $1.91 12/21!/2007 $0.00 

https://bsaonllne._com/SlfeSearch/SlteSearchOetalls?SeatchFocus=Suilding+.0epartTnent&SearchCalegor}"'Par,:el+Number&SeatchText-c64-'14-31-40... 1/2 



1o/13/2021 

i1I'l,t Summer

'2006 ·w-Jrter 

·~ a Soinmer 

wos. , WliJier 
ms . ;.,,,,,;,,., 
21»! .·WJor,;, 

!~ SU""""' 

2003 vinu,r 

• 2003 summ.,. 
m;· Winter 

.2Ci)t ' sum.me, 

.l001 · Winier 

2001 : s~""""' 

m's+ 

S+.41; 

$9i.21 

f$M 
$$(!..();;. 

ta.'1 

m.e1 
$8:76 

P7,ll6 

$8.67· 

$e<'.~ 

h<>.19 

$$$;21 

wt.54 
$0Jl(l 

~1.25. 

~.w 
~.Gli. 

i8.9:t' 

sa1;a1 

$a15 

ms; 
$8,67. 

w.~ 
$10.19 

$M.i1 

o1i2312rm 

~1/,!006 

l)S/01/ZD<l!i 

12/ld/,lOQ,I 

01f}3p.~ 

12/16(.2003 

!p/15/2003 

l2/'19P.OOZ 

<tl/:\9/l~ 

1;>/31~001 

iir13oii,rj)1. 

$0.00 

S4M"'""'41!'.oW\Ol

SQ;S$ -~N~J

W<il .. _f<~J!'>i<;,,, 

$!!.00·· 

IQ.CO 

SOJlll 

~.00 
$0_00 

$0,0Q 

$1).00 

$.0.00 

~99 

""tilo(l.l-,l!Sl<A.Solu<,...~Bsa,J,Of,lll,,, .. •>,,;,for.""'~d~<odl,,:!>ti~""'""'..-.lls~--b't,,o°""'"lq;o<r,,,>c;ol.lh•..,.Mn,.'n#~ 
ls~""'1d<d le<~ cdyandWm<Olll.WAARMIN cif.-<y~ ~ a,!n/,,m;,;l. ~-):i>iuioolmu..dp,llLyilyi,iJ b,,ll,,,,,o,,;,,'!"'~laihoa.1,.. . 



EXHIBIT "H" 

10/13/2021 Pari:el Number· 6•H4-31-403-007 ! CltY of Pootleo I BS&A Qnllne 

I' 77.0 ORCl:IARO LA.Kl: RO !'<'lN~)I\C, Ml 43341~~041 (!'rriperty Address\ 
I l'ot<:ol Notnbtr.&<-l••l1•;i:13-ool 

i f'top,1tfy Own-er: AMORrHOUS. souo LK 
I Sum;,,a,y/nfurmation 
\. ,. P!l'9<rt1 r .. w;,,.,,..;.," r~n4 • 1 e,,,11</fo9 o,p.,ii,,,.ot,..or..,1..,04 

. ~ORPHOUS SCUD ll.C 
T7()1;)RO{ARO u,ia;: RP. 
P9NIJ~MJ~1•204] 

5H OWNERINFOMIATIDN 

Lell•t 01?5':.riplio~ j 
~------------0-.,------------------------

TI l'li R\Co, ;E<;31 E~<JNS ADoiiiQN u;TT; ii & HXC NWt.Y ~ Fl' 

Recaltulate.arncuotsusing a .di!ferent P'a'Jme!it Dale···-·-· 

1w,:i,lil1 · 1 

T~,;H"r.it<iiy [ ____________________________________ _ 

i_.Ye¥ I Scam i :t.:.i,al Arr.01;-1~ j l"ccil Pai.cl ~a1tP.~d TotafOtie 

\ .oil 5ummer. $3,130.5, $3,130.65 ~/1)2i,021 $0.ll/J 

.:zo.o Winter $11l5.U $lll5.!Z 1?/!-4/iGm $0.llo 

'202,0 sumriler 13,147.41. $3,1-17.•U 071CJ9/;020 $0,00 

'2')1,. WJqc,,,' 1103.37 $fl)3.37 1#16/201~ ,lo.QQ 

2!J!S Summ~r $:!,092;.SI $),092?1 rr/f')<J/20.1':J S0.00 

2018 Wlllti!r $101.U $101.!S 1;!/Q1/20iS $0.QO 

i ;i()18 summer $3,031.75 ~.031.75 07/QS/<0.18 $0.00 

Winter n,\J)8 }9'1.08 12f(Ul/2011 $0.00 

Summer $2,850.43 $2.8SM3 00/03!<017 $0.00 

Wirifer $93.~ ~93.98 1:i/12/2015 io.oo 
S\J~Jn~( $2,B67.i7 $00,n ~OS/2P16 ll):QO 

Wit'l,~t $9423 ™23 )2/()7/2015 ~O(l 

Sui,;i,,oi P,706;.«l S2.7.06.40 07/14/2015 $0.00 

Wiriy:r $~.2$ $!14.2, 1 i/03/20 t 4 $0.00 

SUrtlm:ef $2,917.~.1 $2,917.91 0.7/30/20J4 so.oo 
Wi~ter $75.44 $75.4' 1:2/16/.:013 10~0 

summer ~.044.95' $3,1144.95 07/10/2013 joJJO 

WlnW mi~ ~.2~ l:!J'.31a<)12 I0-00 
... 

Summer $5,175.73. $).i7S.73 OMll/2012 itJOO 

! )on Win~r $42.43 ~l.<la 03.11)7/2012. $0.00 

2011 SuTTVrler $2,013.oT. 10.00 $2,lln.07 •+ P...--.kf N~,} At1m-t> 

,010 Winier $48.20 $,!a.20 12/1.3/2010 so,oo 
2010· Su·mmer $1,846.9J! $1,346.9a m/.!aao10 $0.00 

~9 wtntftr $40.56' $40.56 12/09[,!00!l $0.00 

j /'.CQ9 S.Umm~r $1,841.11 Sf,8,11,11 Q7131)/2009 W.00 
; 21)1)8 WlnW $~1)S $3S,8S 01/05/2009 $000 

WJ8 $l..lmtj'U!l $1,713.79 $1;713.79 07 fZ},fZ(JOO loco 

;wQ7 WiPter $34.53 SJ4.68 J2/26[2007 !o.oo 

llttps://bsa9nllne.com/S!i!aSearch/S~eSearchOe!alls?SearchFoctJS"Bulldb:1g+l)epartment&Seart:hCategoiy=Parcel+Number&seardlText--6+14-31-40,,. 112 



10113/2021 

lWT S:Ummri' 

i 2006 . wint,,r 

• Sijmmet 

.Wlri!iot 

Sum:m~ 
·Wlo1i,r 

Su"'""" 

vt .. ter 

' SUtN'tiet 

•Wloter 

2002: Summer 

,.mi :wiil<i>r 
i 2(1:)1 • $\lirilije,' 

,.~ W-~t 

20Ql ,Sumrt!e, 

• ~ •w-nter 

,.!~ ·Su-

$1,7511;3 

$.&).21 

$1,7\10.Zl. 
tl;l.11 

$1,600,02 

$158.?S 

SMS2.29 

$155.2!} 

$1,l15.f,O 

51S3.1ll 

$1,492;29 

$119.SJ 

$1.SSl.'i?

$13\IJJ) 

l;1,sso2n 
$2W.19. 

~1.-4$7.80, 

$1,7511;3. 

$000 

S1Ji33.~. 

~-<19 
ti,!xli;.112, 

$Wl,1f 

$1.•52.29· 

$i5S.29• 

$1Jr.;.60 .. 

sis:i.1a 
l1.49i:29 

~i79.83 
$1;5$3,T.!. 

$H6.2<! .. 

$1,5.50.lli 

$<1)9.i9 

S1,4S7.00 

()11/01/;ZOO~ 

12/iJpoo,1 

07fl3f2/Jt.)4 

12/16/2003 
ID/15/l.~ 

W,M/;Z002 

0111!¼~ 

1'/l1/a0¢1 

~'mof;,rin 
12{l7/2t;t» 

111/261!.r!Yl. 

,mv,!l9'3 
01/21/1.ffi, 

$0.00. 

$al.21 .. jlo><l"ffl(IJ..S

Sl!G.51 """'41<.,..<-i~
$iU,-rt ,,....,..J<.,..!JlP,;,.., 

$0,90 

~ 
SOJlO 

$0,00 

$\)!)O 

$0.0ll 

tellO 
$6.i)o 

.$/)•QI)· 

$0.00 

40.® 
$000 

SD.00 

<+i,1,d,,l~a!AIA ;ci«w.,..~ B~Ooli ... ~ • ...yior,.,uold!"",tio, ladispf~y!n/wi,aJloo on!l,,...-1 i. rd~ lo, ll\ow,bnt?'- ~ih•d ..... hnn.llµ«!.t. 
l•Jll<'N_~ .... --bi>o/V"dV,'1f-iOOr.WAARA-'i!Yofi,i,J~;,,_.;o~J~i""'-~i'o'Jiio<al,.U~!)<Tfl'O"!a,!lw<_V,,,•"'-".ll>odm 



EXHIBIT "I" 

CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CONVEYANCE OF NORTHWEST 20 FEET OF LOTS 8 
AND 9 ELKINS ADDITION CITY OF PONTIAC (TAX PARCEL 64-14-31-403-006) VIA 

QUIT CLAIM DEED TO AMORPHOUS SOLID LLC 

AT A REGULAR meeting of the Pontiac City Council of the City of Pontiac, Michigan, held 

at _____ on __________ , 2021, the following resolution was offered by 

__________ and supported by _________ _ 

WHEREAS, a certain parcel of property, being the northwest 20 feet of Lots 8 and 9 in the 
Elkins Addition Subdivision in the City of Pontiac (Tax Parcel 64-14-31-403-006) was conveyed to 
the City in 19 56 for the construction or creation of an alley to be located off Sylvan Court west of 
Orchard Lake Road, however, the alley was not constructed; and 

WHEREAS, despite the above-referenced parcel being owned by the City it has appeared on 
the City's tax rolls since at least 1999 and current online records identify the current taxpayer ofto 
be Amorphous Solid LLC, a Michigan limited liability company which operates a glass blowing and 
decorative art business in the immediately adjacent property located at 770 Orchard Lake Road (Tax 
Parcel 64-14-31-403-007; and) 

WHEREAS, the Office of the City Attorney reviewed the circumstances surrounding Tax 
Parcel 64-14-31-403-006, provided Council with a memorandum containing detailed information 
regarding the property and included copies of a current tile insurance commitment and other related 
documents for Council's review and approval to consider whether Council should approve the City's 
conveyance of Tax Parcel 64-14-31-403-006 to Amorphous Solid LLC via quit claim deed; and 

WHEREAS, it is for the mutual benefit of the City, Amorphous Solid, LLC and the future 
owners of 770 Orchard Lake Road to convey Tax Parcel 64-14-31-403-006 to Amorphous Solid 
LLC via quit claim deed. 



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 

1. City Council approves the conveyance of Tax Parcel 64-14-31-403-006 to 
Amorphous Solid LLC via the form of quit claim deed attached to this Resolution and 
directs the Mayor or her designee to execute the quit claim deed on the City's behalf. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, Pontiac, Michigan, this __ day of 
, 2021. ---------

AYES: ------------

NAYS: ------------

I, Garland Doyle, Clerk of the City of Pontiac, hereby certify that the above Resolution is a 
true copy and accurate copy of the Resolution passed by the City Council of the City of Pontiac on 

--------' 2021. 

GARLAND DOYLE, Interim City Clerk 

Dated: , 2021 ----------



EXHIBIT "J" 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 

The City of Pontiac, a Michigan municipal corporation, whose address is 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, 
Michigan 48342 ("Grantor") QUIT CLAIMS to Amorphous Solid LLC, a Michigan limited liability 
company, whose address is 770 Orchard Lake Road, Pontiac, Michigan 48341 ("Grantee"), the following 
described premises situated in the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, and State of Michigan, to wit: 

The Northwesterly 20 feet of Lots 8 and 9, ELKINS ADDITION, as recorded in Liber 8, Page 
6, Oakland County Records. 

Commonly known as: No address. Vacant land on Sylvan Court 
Tax Parcel Number: 64-14-31-403-006 

together with all and singular the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereunto belonging or in anywise 
appertaining. This transaction is exempt from County and State Transfer Taxes pursuant to MCLA 207 .505(h) 
and MCLA 207.526(i). 

Dated this __ day of _____ , 2021. 
Grantor: 
City of Pontiac, a Michigan municipal corporation 

By: 
Deirdre Waterman 

Its: Mayor 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

)§ 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of _____ , 2021 by Deirdre 
Waterman, Mayor of the City of Pontiac who executed this instrument on behalf of the City. 

When Recorded Return To: Grantee 
Send Subsequent Tax Bills To: Grantee 
Drafted By: 
George A. Contis, Esq. 
Giarmarco, Mullins & Horton, P.C. 
101 W. Big Beaver Rd., Suite 1000 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

----------~ Notary Public 
_________ County 

Acting in Oakland County 
My Commission expires: _______ _ 



#16 
RESOLUTION 



To: 

From: 

Re: 

Date: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Council President and City Council Members 

City Attorney through Executive Office 

Amended Medical Marihuana Commission Rules 

December 9, 2021 

Council President and Members of the City Council: 

Consistent with Ordinance 2357(B), Section 6(a), the Medical Marihuana Commission shall adopt 
rules and regulations to govern its proceedings and deliberations. Further, pursuant to Section 
6(b ), the City Council must approve those adopted rules. 

The Medical Marihuana Commission previously adopted Rules and Regulations, for which this 
Council denied approval on November 23, 2021. The Medical Marihuana Commission 
subsequently met on November 30, 2021, and approved amended Rules and 
Regulations. Consistent with the Council duty established in Ordinance 2357(B), the amended 
Rules and Regulations are attached for your review and consideration liberations. 

llPage 



Pontiac Medical Marihuana Commission Rules and Regulations 

All meetings of the Medical Marihuana Commission ("Commission") will be held in compliance with all 
applicable statutes, including the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267 as amended, and with these rules and 
regulations. 

Commission Membership Requirements 

Members of the Commission shall be residents of the City of Pontiac and shall serve without pay. 

Commission Powers and Duties 

The Commission shall review and decide all appeals that are forwarded to it by the City Clerk pursuant to 
Ordinance 2357(B). The Commission shall review all appeals de novo. The Commission may overturn a 
decision or finding of the City Clerk if it finds such decision or finding to be arbitrary or capricious and not 
supported by material, substantial, and competent facts on the whole record considered by the City Clerk 
in arriving at such decision or finding. 

Meeting Schedule 

The Committee shall post a meeting notice in a manner consistent with applicable law subsequent to 
receiving an appeal forwarded to it by the City Clerk pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B). Due to the 
timing irregularity of the receipt of appeals, the Commission may not schedule Regular Meetings as set 
forth in the Michigan Open Meetings Act, Michigan Public Act 267 of 1976, at MCL 15.265. If the 
Commission does adopt a regular meeting schedule, it shall be posted in a manner consistent with MCL 
15.265. 

Minutes of meetings 

Minutes of all meetings of the Commission shall be kept in a manner consistent with applicable law. A 
copy of the minutes of meetings shall be available for public inspection at the City Clerk's Office during 
regular business hours. 

Conduct of meetings 

All meetings of the Commission shall be open to the public except as permitted by applicable law. All 
open meetings shall be open to the media, freely subject to recording by radio, television and photographic 
services at any time, provided that such arrangements do not interfere with the orderly conduct of the 
meetings. 



Commission meeting agenda 

Meeting agendas will be as follows 

1. Call to order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call 
4. Amendments to and approve of the agenda 
5. Approval of the Minutes (As needed) 
6. Agenda Items 
7. Public Comment (3 Minute Limit) 
8. Adjournment 

Quorum 

A majority of the Commission shall constitute a quorum for the review of appeals. 

Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and Secretary 

The Commission shall select, by majority vote, a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and Secretary. 

Presiding Officer 

The Presiding Officer shall be responsible for enforcing these Rules and Regulations and for enforcing 
orderly conduct at meetings. The Chairperson shall be the Presiding Officer. If the Chairperson is absent, 
the Vice Chairperson shall act as the Presiding Officer. In the event of a resignation or other permanent 
absence of the Chairperson or Vice Chairperson position, it shall be filled by nomination and majority vote 
of the Commission members serving. 

Disorderly conduct 

The Presiding Officer may call to order any person who is being disorderly by speaking out of order or 
otherwise disrupting the proceedings, failing to be germane, speaking longer than the allotted time or 
speaking vulgarities. Such person shall be seated until the Presiding Officer determines the person is in 
order. 

Closed sessions 

Closed sessions may be held only for the reasons consistent with applicable law, as determined by the City 
Attorney. 

Calling closed sessions 

The Commission by a two-thirds roll call vote may call a closed session subject to the conditions herein. 
The roll call vote and purpose(s) for calling the closed meeting shall be entered into the minutes of the 
public part of the meeting at which the vote is taken. 

Minutes of closed meetings 

A separate set of minutes shall be taken at the closed session. These minutes will be retained by the City 
Clerk and shall not be available to the public. 



Discussion and voting 

Rules of parliamentary procedure 

The rules of parliamentary practice, as contained in the 11th edition of Robert's Rules of Order, shall 
govern the Commission in all cases to which they are applicable, provided they are not in conflict with 
these rules, city ordinances or applicable state statutes. The Presiding Officer shall preserve order and 
decorum and may speak to points of order in preference to other members. If a point of order is given it 
should not exceed two (2) minutes. 

Conduct of discussion 

During the Commission discussion and debate, no member shall speak until recognized for that purpose 
by the Presiding Officer. After such recognition, the member shall confine discussion to the question at 
hand and to its merits and shall not be interrupted except by a point of order or privilege raised by 
another member. Speakers should address their remarks to the chair, maintain a courteous tone and 
avoid interjecting a personal note into debate. 

Public comment 

Each meeting agenda shall provide reserved time for public comment participation. During public 
comment, each individual shall be limited to three (3) minutes, and shall not engage in conduct or language 
that disrupts, makes fun of, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the meeting. In addition, members 
of the audience shall not engage in disorderly or boisterous activity including but not limited to; the 
utterance of loud, obnoxious, threatening, or abusive language, cheering, whistling, or any other acts that 
disturb, disrupt, or impede, or other"".ise interfere with the orderly conduct of the meeting. 

Suspension of rules 

The rules of the Commission may be suspended for a specified portion of a meeting by an affirmative 
vote of two-thirds of the members present except that Commission actions shall conform to applicable 
law. 



To: 

From: 

Re: 

Date: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Council President and City Council Members 

City Att01ney through Executive Office 

Resolution to Approve Amended Medical Marihuana Commission 
Rules 

December 9, 2021 

RESOLUTION 

Whereas, Ordinance 2357(B), Section 6(a), requires the Medical Marihuana Commission to adopt 
Rules and Regulations that govern its proceedings and deliberations; and 

Whereas, Ordinance 2357(B) Section 6(b), requires the adopted rules to be approved by City 
Council; and 

Whereas, the Medical Marihuana Commission adopted the attached Rules and Regulations at a 
duly noticed public meeting held on November 30, 2021; 

Now, Therefore, the Pontiac City Council hereby approves the Rules and Regulations adopted by 
the Medical Marihuana Commission to govern its proceedings and deliberations. 

I I Page 



#17 Legal 

Update 
MeIDoranduID 



GMIIGIARMARCO, MULLINS & HORTON, P.C. 
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

CC: 

Pontiac City Council 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

November 24, 2021 DATE: 

RE: Legal Update Memorandum 

The following shall serve as an update on certain pending Law Department matters: 

CPREA 

• The bargaining parties are waiting for the results of the termination valuation as of 3-31-21 
for the old GERS. This is currently in the hands of the GERS Board's actuary. Once that 
termination valuation is finalized, the old GERS can distribute assets to the City account to 
pay the opt-out payments and to the new VEBA to pay for health benefits. Opt-out 
payments are scheduled to be made in mid-December. But, the City will not have the funds 
ready to make those opt-out payments without the final valuation and transfer of assets. The 
GERS Board is proposing to alter the pension liabilities of the old terminated GERS to 
include the proposed $400 permanent increase. Treatment of the proposed $400 permanent 
increase as a pension liability of the old GERS is problematic under Section 6 of the 
Settlement Agreement, unless the bargaining parties agree to such treatment. 

• The VEBA Board is overseeing open enrollment for the health benefits. Benefits are 
intended to commence on February 1, 2022. The ability to commence benefits is contingent 
upon the termination valuation be completed so that assets can be transferred out of the old 
GERS to the new VEBA. 

• The VEBA merger agreement is being presented to Council at the 11/30/21 meeting. The 
VEBA Board and P&F VEBA Boards have already approved the document. There have 
been some initial discussions with the IRS related to its approval of the merger agreement. It 
is unclear at this time whether the IRS considers this issue to fall within a "no rule" area. 
The IRS has recommended that a pre-submission phone conference be requested. 

CITY COUNCIL OPEN MEETINGS ACT VIOLATION ALLEGATIONS 

• Many City employees were denied the ability to speak during City Council meeting Public 
Comment. This triggered complaints that were relayed to the Attorney General and Oakland 
County Sheriff. The Attorney General continues to review the complaints and findings of 
the Oakland County Sheriff 



Memorandum 
November 24, 2021 
Page2 

MEDICAL MARIHUANA REVIEW PROCESS 

• The Medical Marihuana Commission has approved their Rules and Procedures, but the City 
Council rejected those rules. As such, the appeal process has been suspended pending 
further Council action. 

• Administration made several recommendations to the Interim Clerk regarding determined 
conflicts of interest related to the application review process. The Interim Clerk has not 
advised as to whether he has complied with these recommendations. 



#18 
COMMUNICATION 

FROM THE CITY 
CLERK 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable City Council 

FR: Garland Doyle, M.P .A. 
Interim City Clerk 

DA: December 9, 2021 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
MEDICAL MAruHUANA DMSION 

47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Phone: (248) 758-3200 

Fax: (248) 758-3160 

RE: Medical Marihuana Commission Update 

November 9, 2021 
On November 9, 2021, Mayor Waterman appointed three of the four commissioners. They are 
Cristi Coles Terrell, Gladys Smith, a city employee and herself (Mayor Deirdre Waterman). 
Section 4(b) of Ordinance 2357 (B) City of Pontiac Medical Marihuana Facilities Ordinance 
states that members of the Medical Marihuana Commission shall be appointed by the Mayor to 
serve at the pleasure of the Mayor for a term of three (3) years. 

There was a Commission meeting scheduled for November 9, 2021 at 1 :00p.m. The Office of the · 
City Clerk posted the meeting notice in accordance with the Open Meetings Act. The 
Commission failed to hold the meeting because Mayor Waterman's LT. Division did not post the 
meeting notice on the City of Pontiac's website. 

November 16, 2021 
The Medical Marihuana Commission held a meeting at 4:30p.m. At this meeting, the 
Commission approved its rules as required by Ordinance 2357(B) City of Pontiac Medical 
Marihuana Facilities Ordinance Section 6(a). 

Despite the City Clerk informing both the City Attorney and the Commission that the rules 
were flawed, the Commission approved the flawed measures anyway. The rules would 
have allowed the Commission to have unwarranted closed session meetings that would 
have not been open to the public. 

The City Council met following the commission meeting. Ordinance 2357(B) Section 6(b) 
requires the City Council to approve the rules adopted by the Commission. The City Council 
rejected the flawed rules and voted not to approve them. 

Additionally, the City Council Legislative Counsel a licensed attorney informed the City Council 
that Section 6.107 of the Pontiac Charter prohibits the Mayor from being able to serve on the 
Commission. 



Section 6.107(c) of the Pontiac City Charter states No elective officer shall hold any appointive 
position, which was created or the compensation for which was fixed or increased during his or 
her incumbency, until one year after such person's leaving office. Since the Medical 
Marihuana Commission was established by Ordinance 2357(B) in 2018 while Mayor 
Waterman was in office, Mayor Waterman is ineligible to currently serve on the 
Commission. 

Until the Commission has at least three legal members and the City Council approves its rules, it 
will not be able to hear appeals. 

November 24, 2021 
City Attorney Chubb issued a Legal Update Memorandum to the City Council informing 
the Council "The Medical Marihuana Commission has approved their Rules and 
Procedures, but the City Council rejected those rules. As such, the appeal process has been 
suspended pending further Council action." 

November 30, 2021 
The Medical Marihuana Commission held an illegal meeting at 4:30p.m. The Open Meetings 
Act requires that a special meeting notice must be posted at least 18 hours prior to meeting. The 
City Clerk refused to post the meeting notice because the commission is acting illegally. The 
Commission does not have at least three legal members. Despite the meeting notice not being 
posted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act and the City Attorney stating that the 
Commission appeal process had been suspended, the Commission holds an illegal meeting 
anyway. 

In addition to the meeting not being properly posted, the Commission votes to elect Mayor 
Waterman as the Chairperson of this illegal body. 

• 
• 

• 

• 

There were two different meeting agendas for the November 30, 2021 meeting . 
The Commission adopts some revisions to its rules but keeps the provision that would 
allow them to have unnecessary closed sessions. 
The Commission fails to be transparent. The Commission did not record and televise the 
meeting. 
In effort to shine the light on the illegal activities of the Commission, the City Clerk 
had the meeting recorded and a certified shorthand reporter to take notes at the 
meeting. The Commissioners were refusing to speak into the microphones to make it 
hard for anyone who was watching the meeting to follow the proceedings. 

Commission fails to be transparent and follow best practices 
The Commission is not following best practices. Although, Ordinance 2357(B) does not state a 
city employee cannot serve on the Commission, it is a best practice that commissioners not be 
city employees. The City of Lansing did not allow its employees to be commission members. In 

2 



addition, commission members could not have a direct financial interest "in a medical marijuana 
facility in Lansing." 

Pontiac Medical Marihuana Commission consist of a city employee Gladys Smith and the 
commission has not developed a conflict of interest policy. Unlike the Clerk, who required all 
application reviewers to sign and adhere to a conflict of interest policy. 

Mayor Waterman continues to delay the approval of medical marihuana permits 
This is evident by the fact that the Clerk began issuing conditional approvals to growers and 
processors subject to approval from the Building and Fire Departments starting in May 2021. It 
has been over six months and not one grower or processor has received the Ordinance 2357 (B) 
required sign off by the Building and Fire Departments so the Clerk can issue them permits. 

This is another reason why it is inappropriate and a conflict for the Mayor to serve on the 
Commission. Despite the Charter not allowing it, the Mayor should not be over an appeals 
board, if city departments under her control are a part of the approval process. 

The Clerk is urging the City Council to reject any rules adopted by the Commission until some 
safeguards to protect the City are added to their rules. 

3 



City Clerk issues Conditional Approvals to Growers and Processors over six months ago. Mayor 
delays approval of permits by preventing City Departments from giving the required sign off 
needed in order for the Clerk to award permits. The Clerk wants to set deadlines for conditional 
approvals so businesses can open. 

Conditional Approved Growers in the Pre-Permit Process 

Applicant Proposed District License Conditional Consent Building Fire Planning Liability& 
Name Location Class Appro,•al to Release (Waterford Site Casualty 

Issued Form Regional) Plan/Special Insurance 
Received Exemption (if Verified 

necessarv) 
Phannaco 13 S Old Glenwood Plaza Class C 613/2021 Yes 

Inc Glenwood (Conditional (upto 
Rezoning) 1500 

plants) 
Applicant Proposed District License Conditional Consent Building Fire Planning Liability & 

Name Location Class Approval to Release (Waterford Site Casualty 
Issued Form Regional) Plan/Special Insurance 

Receh·ed Exemption (if Verified 
necessarv) 

PGSH 1054 Durant Cesar Chavez Class C 5!2li2021 719/2021 
Holdings (upto 

LLC 1500 
plants) 

Family 1-97 $ Old Glenwood Plaza Class A 5/2712021 6{19/2021 Yes 
Rootz Glenwood (Conditional (upto 

Rezoning) 500 
plants) 
C(up to 

1500 
plants) 

Botanical 1651 E \Valton Class C 7/19/2021 612212021 
Greens Highwood (upto 

1500 
olants) 

Conditional Approved Processors in the Pre-Permit Process 

Applicant Proposed District Conditional Coruent to Building Fire Planning Liability & 
Name Location Appronl Issued Release (Waterford Site Casualty 

Fonu Regional) Plan/Special Insurance 
Recerl'ed Exemption (if Verified 

necessary) 
Phannaco 13 S Old Glenwood Plaza 6i3i2021 

Inc Glenwood (Conditional Rezonine) 
Family 1-97 S Old Glenwood Plaza 51:2712021 6/19/2021 
Rootz Glenwood (Conditional Rezonin2) 

4 

State 
Pre-

Approval 

Yes 

State 
Pre-

Appronl 

Yes 

Yes 

State 
Pn-

Approval 

Yes 

Yes 



#19 
COMMUNICATION 

FROM THE CITY 
CLERK 








































	1
	2
	3
	4
	5



